715" ANNUAL REPORT
2023 - 2024



Telephone: 2230-9926

Website: kantandcompany.com

KANT

KANT & COMPANY LIMITED

15 DR. RAJENDRA PRASAD SARANI, KOLKATA — 700001
CIN: L17232WB1952PLC020773

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 71st Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Limited will be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024, at 11.00 am at th
Company at 15 Dr. Rajendra Prasad Sarani, Kolkata-700001, to transac

of themembers of Kant & Co.
e Registered office of the
t the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financi
Consolidated Financial Statements) of the Company for the financial ye
and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as

an ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
2024, the Statement of Profit &

h Flow Statement for the year
ditor's Report thereon be and are

March 31, 2024 including Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
Loss Account for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 and the Cas
ended on that date together with the Board’s Reports and Au
hereby considered and adopted.”

2. Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Deepankar Nandi (DIN-01249332), a Non Executive Director
provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution

pursuant to the

as an ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr.Deepankar Nandi (DIN: ), Director of the Company, who retires by rotation
at this 71st Annual General Meeting and being eligible for re-appointment , be and is hereby re-

appointed as a Director of the Company and he shall be liable to retire by rotation”

al Statements (including Standalone and
ar ended March 31, 2024

By order of the Board of Directors

Registered Office:

15, Dr. Rajendra Prasad Sarani, For Kant & Co.Limited
Kolkata-700001

CIN: L17232WB1952PLC020773

Phone: (033)2230-9926 Reena Agarwal

Email: kantcoltd@gmail.com
Website:www.kantandcompany.com Kem

Date: September 7, 2024

Company Secre

rpao



ANNEXURE TO THE 71* AGM NOTICE

Notes:

ik

Keeping the convenience of the Members positioned in di i i
ed
has been scheduled at 11:00 A.M. IST. ’ il i

However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act and Rules framed there-under, the
cor.porate members are ent_itled to appoint authorized representatives for the purpose of
v'otmg thrqugh remote e-Voting or for the participation. Institutional Shareholders (i.e., other
than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF /JPG Format) of
th.e relevant Boarq Resolution/Power of Attorney / appropriate Authorization Letter together
with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, through e-mail at kantcoltd@gmail.com with a COPY marked to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

rst holder in the order of

In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name appears as the fi
titled to vote during the

Raé;rr“l:s as per the Register of Members of the Company will be en

Dispatch of Annual Report through E-mail

In accordance with the MCA Circulars and the said SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, the
Notice along-with the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, will be sent only through e-mail, to those Members whose e-mail addresses are
registered with the Company. The Notice and the Annual Report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 shall be available on the websites of the Company viz.,
www.kantandcompany.comand of the Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares of the
Company are listed. The Notice shall also be available on the e-Voting website of the
agency engaged for providing e-Voting facility, i.e., Central Depository Services (India)

Limited (CDSL), viz., www.evotingindia.com

n of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the AGM as required
and the Revised Secretarial Standard on

f Company Secretaries of India (ICSl) is

Necessary informatio
under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations

General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute ©
also appended to the Notice.

r Register of the Company will remain closed

The Register of Members and Share Transfe
30t September, 2024 (both days

from Tuesday, 24" September, 2024 to Monday,
inclusive).

ation regarding the accounts are requested to inform the

Shareholders desiring any inform
: he Annual General Meeting to enable the Management to

Company at least 15 days before t
keep the information ready.

mail addresses so far are requested to register

red their e-
g Annual Report, Notices etc.

Members who have not registe il addres .
g all communications includin

their e-mail address for rec.eivin
from the Company electronically.
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13.

14.

15.

SEBI vide amendment in the Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 hence as per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment Vide Notification No.
SEBI/LAD-NRO / GN /2018-49 dated 30" November 2018, requests for effecting transfer of
securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be
processed from 1! April, 2019 unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with
the depositories. With the said change coming into effect from 15t April 2019. Equity shares
of the company are eligible for transfer only in Dematerialized form. Therefore, the
Shareholders are requested to take action to dematerialize the Equity Shares held in the
Company promptly. On or after 15t April, 2019, no request for transfer of shares in physical
form can be processed by the Company / RTA.

In" accordance with the provisions of Section 101 of the Act read with Rule 18 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Report 2023-24 is
being sent through electronic mode to all the members whose email addresses (IDs) are
registered with the Company / Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes.

With a view to conserving natural resources and using them responsibly, we request
shareholders to register / update their email address with their Depository Participants(s) to
enable the company to send communication electronically.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their self-attested PAN details to the company, if
not submitted already.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 715t Annual General Meeting and the Annual
Report for the year 2023-24 will also be available on the Company’'s website at
www.kantandcompany.com The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be
available at the Company’'s Registered Office for inspection during business hours (9:00
A.M. to 5:00 P.M.) on all working days except Saturday and Sunday up to and including the
date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company. For any communication, the
shareholders may also send requests to the Company's investor email id:
kantcoltd@gmai.com.

The relevant details as required by Regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of person seeking appointment / re-appointment as
Directors under item no. 2 the notice, is also annexed.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administ(ation) Rules, '2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &. Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015
(as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, _the Company has entered into an
agreement with Central Depository Services (Ind!a)'lelted (CDSL) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. Thg fa ility of votes
by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system o GM
will be provided by CDSL. '
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business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an
agreement with Central Depository Services (Ind_la)'lelted (CDSL) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes
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will be provided by CDSL.
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/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under

(i)  Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD
f India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board o
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting

facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been
observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders

is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

uant to a public consultation, it
t holders, by way of a single
f Depositories/ Depository
te without having to
tication but also

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, purs
has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat accoun
login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites 0
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vo
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authen
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1 - Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case 0
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

f individual

D/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,

(iv) In_terms of SEBI circular_no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CM
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-\oting facility.

Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI
n Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

shareholders holding securities i

Type of | Login Method
shareholders

for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through

1) Users who have opted
and password. Option will be made available to

their existing user id

Individual reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to

Shareholders login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website

holding www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab.

securities in

Demat mode | 2) After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-
where the evoting is in progress as

Voting option for eligible companies
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option,

the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is
also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’

website directly.

with CDSL
Depository




| (DP)

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is

4)

available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1)

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https:/eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS “Portal or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities  in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned site.

Helgdesk.for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

lndiviC_iyaI §hareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in
securities in Demat mode with login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
CDSL sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in

securities in Demat mode with login can contact NSDL helpdesk by

NSDL sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or call at toll free no.; 1800 1020 990 and
1800 22 44 30

§tep 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares
in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on “Shareholders’ module.
3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered

with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.




(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

- vote.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individua
shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact

Company/RTA.
Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy
Bank format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company

Details records in order to login.

OR Date e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
of  Birth company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
(DOB) Dividend Bank details field.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant Kant & Co Limited on which you choose to vote.
On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES

implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have _decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK’", else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allo

b
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You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print” option on the

(xiv)
Voling page.

(xv)  If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

(xvi)  There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made

available to scrutinizer for verification.

(xvi)  Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote
Voting only.

« Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) gnd Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates

module.
« Ascanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

« After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they
wish to vote on.

« The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case

of any wrong mapping.
« Itis Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA)
which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format

in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at

the email address viz; kantcoltd@gmail.com(designated email address by company) , if
they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for

the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to

Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

A i




3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you

can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55
33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel

(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evotin slindia.com or call at toll
free no. 1800 22 55 33

By order of the Board
For Kant & Co Limited

Place: Kolkata

Reena Agarwal
(M. No. A70570)

Date: 07/09/2024 Company Secretary
Reena e




KANT & CO. LIMITED

CIN: L17232WB1952PLC020773

Reg. Off.: 15 DR. RAJENDRA PRASAD SARANI KOLKATA West engal-700001 India
Email id: kantcoltd@gmail.com , Website: www.kantandcompany.com

Contract No. 98746 04090

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To,
The Members,

Your direc_lc—rs have pleasure in submitting their 71*' Annual Report on the affairs of the Company
together with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31%
March 2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Financial Results of the Company for the year 2023-24 are summarized as under:

(Amount in Hundred except EPS)

Consolidated Standalone

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Profit /{Loss) before taxation 50,363.28 | (8,43,495.79) | 50,363.28 | (8,43,495.79)
Less: Tax Expense (7,778.25) | (1,25974.04) | (7,778.25) | (1,25,974.04)
Profit /{(Loss) after tax 58,141.53 | (9,69,469.83) | 58,141.53 | (9,69,469.83)
Add: Share of Profit from 443,91 1,650.99 - -
Associates
Less:
Transfer to General Reserve - = B
Proposed Dividend - (5.558.30) - (5,559.30)
Add: Other Comprehensive 423,97 (1,934.05) 423.97 (1,934.05)
Income
Add: Balance B/F from the (1,07,301.27) | 86781092 | (1,93,347.74) | 7,83,615.44
previous year
Balance Profit/(Loss) C/F to the (48,291.86) | (1,07,301.27) (1,93,347.74)
next year (1.34,782.24)
Earnings per share 10.54 (174.05) 10.46 (174.39)

PERFORMANCE

During the year under review your company has Total Revenue of 5,26,312.39/- (Amount in
Hundred) for the current year as compared to previous year Total Revenue of 23,08.475.71 /-
(Amount in Hundred) and has earned a Profit of 58,141.53/- (Amount in Hundred) for the current year
as compared to previous year earned Loss of 9,69,469.83/- (Amount in Hundred).




3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

Your directors inform that there is no substantial change in the nature of the business during the year
under_ review.

4. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

During the Financial Year 2023-24 there is no change in the share capital of the company.

5. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT-9 as required under Section 92 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the financial year endmg March 31, 2024 is annexed hereto as Annexure 2 and forms
part of this report.

6. NUMBER OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the year under review 6(Six) meetings of the Board of Directors were held.

Remuneration of Directors
Transactions of the non — executive directors

The non-executive directors of the Company have paid sitting fees of Rs. 1,05,000 for attending
meetings during the financial year 2023 - 24.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

Company has properly ana!yzéd and identified the key business risk area and a Risk Mitigation
process. Company had extensively exercised at regular intervals to identify, evaluate, manage and
monitor all business Risk.

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

During the year under review Corporate Governance Certificate is Not Applicable to the Company.

9. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The provisions for constitution of the internal committee and the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act. 2013 are not applicable to the
company. There is no complaint from any women pursuant to provisions of the said Act.



10.DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) your Directors
confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31" Margh. 2024, the apphcab‘rle
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any. :

b. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end .of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period: i

c. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. THe directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; -

e. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11.REPORTING OF FRAUD BY STATUTORY AUDITORS

There was no fraud in the Company, which was required to report by statutory auditors of the
Company under sub- section (12) of section 143 of Companies Act, 2013.

12.AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditors, in their report have referred to the Notes forming part of the Final Accounts,
considering the principle of the materiality; the notes have been explained in the relevant notes to
the financial statements for the period ended on 31* March 2024 are self-explanatory and do not
need any further comments under section 134 of Companies Act, 2013.

13.STATUTORY AUDITORS

The members of the Company at the 68th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2021
had approved the appointment of M/s Ramesh Onkar & Associates Chartered Accountants(FR
No.010252C) for the term of five years i.e. from the conclusion of 68st Annual General Meeting until
the conclusion of 73rdAnnual General Meeting of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 3(7) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the aforesaid agreement needs to be ratified by the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly the appointment of M/s Ramesh
Onkar & Associates Chartered Accountants (FR No.010252C) as Statutory Auditors of the Company
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of next Annual
General Meeting is commended for ratification by the members. A certificate from M/s Ramesh Onkar
& Associates Chartered Accountants (FR No0.010252C) that that their appointment is within
prescribed limits under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been obtained by the Company.
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14.COST RECORD AND/OR COST AUDIT

The company does not fall within the provisions of Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013. read with
the Companies (Cost records & Audit) Rules, 2014, therefore no such records required to be

maintained. '
15.SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Gnmpa_.mes
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has app?rnted
Mrs. Geeta Roy Chowdhury of M/s. S R & Associates, Practicing Company Secretarl?s to
conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed .herewﬂh to
this Report. are self-explanatory and do not need any further comments under section 134 of
Companies Act, 2013,

16.INTERNAL AUDIT _ ;
In terms of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors had appointed P. B,

Shetty & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No 110102W) being eligible and having
sought appointment as Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25.

17.PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN
AND SECURITIES PROVIDED

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 particulars of loans, guar antees oF
investments provided by the Company under Section 186(4) of the Act as at the end of the Financial
Year 2023-24 are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statement attached with the Board Report.

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All contracts and arrangements with related parties, entered into or modified during the financial year,
were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. No material contracts or
arrangements with related parties were entered into during the year under review.

19. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves as required under section 134(3)(j)of
Companies Act 2013during the year under review.

20. DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors has decided not to declare Dividend for the year ended 31% March 2024.

21. MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT AND END OF
FINANCIALYEAR.

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report, as required to be reported under section

134(3)(1).
22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING & OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to our Company.
There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year under review.



23. lshgﬂg::ﬂEm INDICATING DEVELOPMENT & IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company as required under section 134(3)(n) state that the risk
associated in the ordinary course of business is duly taken care by the Board while taking business

decisions. Further the company does not have a need to formulate any specified risk management
policy.

24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS

The company is not required to provide statement on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section
134(3)(0) of the companies Act, 2013 as the company does not fall under the criteria provided under

section 135 (1) of Companies Act, 2013, therefore no such committee was constituted by the
company.

25. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has not issued shares under employee's stock options scheme pursuant to provisions

of Section Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, during the Financial
Year 2023-24.

26.DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES

The Company has not issued sweat equity shares pursuant to provisions of Section 54 read with
Rule 8 of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year.

27.RETIREMENT BY ROTATION
In accordance with provisions of Company's Articles of the Association Mr. Deepankar Nandi (DIN:

01249332) will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer
himself for reappointment.

28. DISQUALIFICATIONS OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review declarations were received from the Directors of the Company pursuant
to Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board appraised the same and found that none of
the directors are disqualified for holding office as director.

29. SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT VENTURE

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Joint Venture Company but have five Associates
namely:-

1).Sriharipadam Trading Ltd.

2) Behubor Trading Ltd.

3) Jardine Pest Management Ltd.

4) Diamond Products Printing and Processing Ltd.

5 )Chairana Tea DelearsPvt Ltd

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act, the Company has prepared a consolidated financial
statement which forms part of the Annual report A statement containing salient features of the

financial statements of the associate companies in the prescribed format AOC-1 is also included in
the Board report and is marked as Annexure-3.



30. DEPOSITS

The E:onjpany has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

31. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts/ Tribunals impacting the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

32. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

According to Section 134 (5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the term 'Internal Financial Control' (IFC)
means the policies and procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, safeguarding of its assets,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and timely preparation of reliable financial information.The Company has a well-placed, proper and
adequate internal control system, which ensures the efficiency and profitability of operations, the
reliability of information, adhering to rules and regulations, that all assets are safeguarded and
protected, and that the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported regularly and correctly.

33.COMMISSION RECEIVED BY DIRECTORS FROM HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY

During the year under review none of the directors of the company are in receipt of the
commission or remuneration from holding or subsidiary company of the company, if any, as
provided under section 197 (14) of Companies Act, 2013.

34. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The provisions of Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 (2) & rule 5 (3) of

Companies (appointment and remuneration) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the company, during
the year under review.

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors are also thankful to the Members of the Company for their faith and confidence in the
Management of the Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(s KANT & COMPANY LIMITEL:
KANT & COMPANY LIMITLY , W
e = /Q_'Cr-{b&-‘-% e [ipo=*
:\\/“xbﬂw \I Director A
Malini Vincent Soans Kausik Gupta
Director Director
DATE:07"September, 2024 DIN:-09712652 DIN:- 08000780

PLACE: Kolkata
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024

|Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Compamies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
Kant & Co Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by KANT & Co LIMITED (hercinafier called the
*Company™), The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, munute books, forms and retumns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31" March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has maintained proper Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined books. papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by KANT & Co LIMITED for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 according
to the provisions of the following. in so far as they are applicable to the Company:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent applicable) and the rules made
thereunder, ;

The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,

The following Regulations prescnibed under the Secunties and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (*SEBI Act’):

N

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Secuntics and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employees Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; T T
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Continuation Sheet

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
20009, to the extent applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses/ Regulations of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India:
(i) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

We further report that:

- the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non—Executive Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review.

adequate notice 1s given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes
on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the Meeting and for meaningful
participation at the Meeting. unanimously/ majority decision is carried through while the dissenting
member's views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

For S R & Associates

1o Qo | el ouddn

Partmer
Unique Code of Parmership Firm; P200SWB016700

Name of Company Secretary in Practice: GEETA ROY CHOWDHURY
Membership No: FCS: 7040; C.P. No.; 7741

Unique Code of Number:  12007WB599800

UDIN: FOOTO40F001147729

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 05092024

Note: This report is to be read with Annexure which forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure

Tao
The Members
Kant & Co Limited

|. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

3. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records, The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4, Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company. S

f«ej C.D%t:‘iuu‘jﬂ

Partner

Unique Code of Partnership Firm: P2008WB016700

Name of Company Secretary in Practice: GEETA ROY CHOWDHURY
Membership No: FCS: 7040; C.P, No.: 7741
Unique Code of Number: 12007WBS599800
LIDIN: FOOT040F001147729
Place : Kolkata
Dated :05.09.2024
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ANNEXURE-2

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2024

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules,

2014,
| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
rT Lt L17232WB1952PLC020773

Registration Date T Tof 1653

Ham bi tie Sompery KANT & CO.LTD

Category/Sub-category of the Company Category-Company Limited by Shares
Sub-Category— Indian Non Government,
Company. -

Address of the Registered office & contact details 15.0r,Rajendra Prasad Sarani.(Clive Row)
Kolkata -700001 West Bengal

Whether listed company YES

MName, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if NOT APPLICABLE

any.

I. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

8, Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. services Product/service company
1 Tratling of Mutual Funds 3
2 Trading of Black Tea and Jute Bags 97
il. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
[S. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary| % of |Applicable
Mo. {Associale shares| section
held
1 [SRIHARIPADAM TRADING LIMITED U65993WRBI1984PLC03T7320  Associate 49.44%
2 BEHUBOR TRADING LIMITED, I6T120WRI1977PLCO308R9G  |Associate 49.68%
3 UARDINE PEST MANAGEMENT LTD . |U93090WBI964PLC026043  |Associale 48 04%
4 [DIAMOND PRODUCTS PRINTING & U?ZZIBWBIQM?LCOH?S‘I Associate 20.47%
PROCESSING LTD.
5 CHAIRANA TEA DEALERS PVT LTD U15400WB2022PTC252130 {Associate 22.00%
L = - o T——




Category of Mo. of Shares held a inni - [
Snarahaldecs i tthe beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year éhange
during
the year
Demat | Physical | Total % of Total Demat | Physical | Total % of Total
Shares Shares
A, Promoters
(1) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
a) Individual/ HUF 27900 | 35300 | 63200 | 11.37 27900 | 35300 | 63200 | 11.37 -
"b) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
| "c) State Gowi(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) Bodies Corp. Nil 262530 | 262520 | 47.22 Mil 262530 | 262530 | 47.22
) Banks / Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Mil Nil Nil Nil
f) Any other (Trust) Nil BBOOD | 8BOOO | 15.83 Nil 88000 | 88000 | 15.83
Sub- total (A) (1):- 27900 | 385830 | 413730 | 74.42 27900 | 385830 | 413730 | 74.42
(2) FOREIGN
a) NRls- Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Others- Individuals il il Nil Mit il Nil il Mil
c) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Mil Nil
d) Banks/ FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Any other * Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil il il Nil
Sub- total (A) (2):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total shareholding of 27000 | 385830 | 413730 | 7442 | 27900 | 385830 | 413730 | 74.42 | -
Promoter (A)=(A)(1) +
(A)(2)
B. Public Sharehelding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds Nil il Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Banks [ Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil




g Central ~Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
- Sate Gowi®) Nil Nl Ni Nl Nl Nl Ni Nil
r&i‘mcap“a' Funds. | Nit Nl Nl Nl Nl Nl Nl Nl
finsurance Companies | Nil Nil Nil Nl Nl Nil Nl NIl
LgTﬁE-_ Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
h) Foreign Venture Capital | Nil il Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Funds
i) Others (Private Limited Nil Nil il il Nil Nil Nil Nil
Company)
Sub-total (B)({1):- Nil Wil il Mil Nil Nil Nil Nil
7. Non-Institutions
3) Bodies Corp.
1) Indian 23050 | 23050 | 4.15 23050 | 23050 | 4.15
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 36430 36430 | 6.55 36430 36430 6.55
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh
i} Individual shareholders 82720 82720 14.88 82720 82720 14.88
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs 1
lakh
c) Others (Trust) il Nil il Mil Mil Nil
Sub-total (B)(2):- 142200 | 142200 | 25.58 142200 | 142200 | 25.58
Total Public 142200 | 142200 | 25.58 142200 | 142200 | 25.58
Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares held by Mil Wil il Nil il Mil Nil
Custodian for GDRs & d
ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 27900 528030 | 555930 | 100 27900 528030 | 555930 | 100




ii) Shareholdin of Promoter-
S | snareholders | Sharenolding at the beginning of | Sharehoiding al the end of the | % chang@
N Mame the year year in
== shareholdin
No. of % of | %of No. of %of | %of g during the
Shares total | Shares Shares total | Shares year
Shares | Pledged/ | Shares | Pledged/
ofthe | encumber of the | encumber
compa | ed to lotal compa | ed to total
.- ny shares ny shares
7 | Mayur Fincod 210500 | 37.86 | Nil 310500 | 37.86 | Nil Nil
Leasing Pvt Lid
7 | G.L. Mehta 88000 | 15.83 | Nil 88000 | 1583 | Nil il
ganatan Trust
3| Sripadam 50530 | 0.00 Nil 50530 | 9.09 Nil Nil
_tﬂ.reslmenls Ltd,
% | Sunanda Mehta 49300 8.87 Nil 49300 8.87 Nil Nil
5| Amita Mehta/ 5450 0.98 Nil 5450 0.98 Nil Nil
| Shishir Mehta
5 | Shipra Mehta/ 4400 0.79 Nil 4400 0.79 Nil Nil
Shailja Mehta
7| Shishir Mehta/ 2050 0.37 Nil 2050 0.37 Nil Nil
Armita Mehta
& | Suresham Holdings | 1500 0.27. Nil 1500 0.27 Nil Nil
(P) Ltd,
g | Shailja Mehta/ 750 0.13 Mil 750 0.13 Mil Nil
Mridula Mehta
10 | Shipra Mehta/ 750 0.13 Nil 750 0.13 Nil Nil
Mridula Mehta
11 | Shailja Mehta/ 500 0.09 Nil 500 0.09 Nil Nil
Shipra Mehta |

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify,

if there is no change)

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Mil Nil Mil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during | Nil Mil NIL Mil
the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment ftransfer / bonus/ sweat equity elc.): '
1 At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareho
Other than Directors, Promoters and Helde

Iders:
rs of GDRs and ADRs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders of the year during the
Year
Mo. of shares | % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares of the shares of the
_ company company
Al the beginning of the year 504050 90.67 504050 90.67




Date wise Increase / Decrease in Pr
; : omole
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasnnrz

for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / t
bonus/ sweat equity etc): ransfer /

At the end of the year

504050

90.67

504050

90.67

areholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

v) Sh
SN

Shareholding of each Directors and each Key

Cumulative Shareholding

: Shareholding at the beginning
Managerial Personnel of ;‘:y:a,mg 2 ] during the
year
3 I No. of shares | % of total
Hg.of shaes ;?‘::et:ﬁ the shares of the
company i company
At the beginning of the year Nil - il :
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters | - - = E
Shar.ehulding during the year specifying the reasons
for increase [/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / |
bonus/ sweat equity etc.);
Al the end of the year Nil Nil )
V) INDEBTEDNESS -
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Secured Loans excluding Unsecured Loans | Deposits Toud
deposits Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 39,00,000/- 6,05,000/- 45,05,000/-
i) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due = ' .
00/- 45,05,000/-
Total (i+iiiii) 19,00,000- | 6050
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year - TTA00%
* Addition 1,14,000/-
* Reduction (2,00,000/-) - (2,00,000/-)
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
ear
_y FCn 27 00000/ 6,05,000/- 43,05,000/-
i} Principal Amount Boand = TAAD00
ii) Interest due but not paid 1,14,000 = [
iit) Interest accrued but not due 5
Total {i+ii+iii) 38,14,000/- 6,05,000/- 44,19,000/-




Vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andior Manager:

| SM. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager | Total Amount
! Managing Director e
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secti E i N
! Act. 1961 | ion 17(1) of the Income-tax Mil
(b) Value of perquisites uls 17(2) Income-tax Acl, 1961 il NI
19 Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Acl, 1961 il L
2 Stock Option i Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Mil
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 | Others, please specify Nil Nil
Total (&) Nil Mil
|| Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors-
SN, | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Rakesh | Kausik Malini Dipankar
Macwan | Gupta Vincent | Nandi
Soans
1 | Independent Directors .
+ Fee for attending board committee meetings Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
« Commission il Nil Nil Nil Nil
= Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (1) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 | Other Non-Executive Directors
«* Fee for attending board committee meetings 30,000 | 30,000 20,000 | 25,000 1,05,000/-
« Commission % - = - =
s«  Others, (Professional Fees) - 3,37,500/- | - - 3.37.500
Total (2) 30,0004 | 3,67,500 20,000 | 25,000 4.42,500/-
Total (B)=(1+2) 30,000/- | 3.67,500 | 20,000 | 25,000 | 4.42,500/-
Total Managerial 30,000/ | 3,67.500 20,000 | 25,000 4,42 500/-
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C.REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/MWTD

SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO | CS | CFO | Total
1 Gross salary Mil Mil [ Nil | Nil
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 | Nil Nil | NIl | Nil
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil Nil [ Nil | Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil
2 Stock Option Nil Nil | Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity il Nil | Nil | Nil
4 Commission il Nil | Wil Nil
- as % of profit il Nil | Nil Nil
others, specify... il Wil | Nil Mil
5 Others, please specify . il Nil | Nil | Nil
Total Nil Nil | Nil | Nil




Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUND

ING OF OFFENCES:-NIL

DTN 08000730

PIN. O9F/2¢65L

Type Section of the Brief D : thori Appeal
etails of Penalty / Punishment/ Authority ppe
Companies Act Description Cnmpu:ndi?-l;afe&;a imposed [RD/NCLT/ made,
COURT] if any (give
Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL MIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL MIL NIL NIL MIL
TED
KANT & COMPANY LIMITED il L oeus
=] e WKW- Director
Director =
IRRRIK TR MALINI VINCENT SoANS
DIREC'TO& DIRECT'JR\



{Pursuant to first
Statement containi

Statement pursuant 1o Section 129(3) of the Compani

ANNEXURE-3

Form AOC-]

Part “A"™: Subsidiaries
The Company has no subsidiaries.

Part “B"; Associates & Joint Ventures ' )
es Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
ng salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Name of tha Associates Sriharipadam Trading Ltd. Behubor Trading Ltd.
1 | Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2024 31.03.2024
2 | Shares of Associate held by the Company -
on the year end
No. of Shares 110400 141500
Amount of Investment in Associates 1324800 3117500
Extent of Holding % 49.44 49,68
3 | Description of how there is significant The Company has significant influence The Company has significant influence
influence through holding more than 20% of Equity through holding more than 20% of Equity
Shares in the investee company Shares in the investee company
4 | Reasonwhy the associate/joint ventureis | N.A M.A
not consolidated
5 | Net worth attributable to shareholding as 20,98,305 1,43,74,516
per latest audited Balance Sheet
6 | Profit/Loss for the year
i) Considered in Consolidation 1,31,109/- 72,592/
i) Mot Considered in 1,34,079/- 71,668/-
Consolidation :
Mame of the Associates Jardine Pest Management Ltd. Diamond Products Printing & Processing Ltd
1 | Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2024 31.03.2024
2 | Shares of Associate held by the Company
an the year end
Mo. of Shares 135000 124850
Amount of Investment in Associates 135000/- 124850/-
| Extent of Holding % 48.04 20.47 N
| 3 | Description of how there is significant The Company has significant influence The Company has significant influence .
influence through holding more than 20% of Equity through holding more than 20% of Equity
Shares in the investee company Shares in the investee company
|
4 | Reason why the associate/joint ventureis | N.A N.A
|| not consolidated
5 | net worth attributable to shareholding as | (14,56,310) (9,63,891)
| per latest audited Balance Sheet i
& | Profit/Loss for the year
i) Considered in Consolidation - -
i} Mot Considered in - x
. [ Consolidation




- e
Name of the Associates | ChairanaTea Dealers Private limited
Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2024
shares of Associate held by the Company on the year end
no. of Shares, 55000
amount of Investment in Associates 550000/-
Extent of Holding % 3300
3 | Description of how there is significant influence The Company has significant influence through
holding more than 20% of Equity Shares in the
investee company
T Reason why the associate/joint venture is not MN.A
consolidated
5 | Met worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 3,89,242
audited Balance Sheet .
& | Profit/Loss for the year
iy Considered in Consolidation (1,58,475)
i} Mot Considered in Consolidation (5,61,866)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors WT & COMPA'NY bl e
KANT & COMPANY LIMITED *

~— W Director
Moadio V padsed

Malini Vincent Seans Kausik Gupta

. Director Director
Date :7" September,2024 DIN:-097 12652 DIN:-08000780

Place : KOLKATA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of M/s Kant & Co. Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind A5 financial statements of M/fs Kant & Co.
Limited (“the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act,2013(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended,(” Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Campanies Act, 2013. Qur
responsibilities under those Stendards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ( ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial stalements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtainedby us is
sufficient and apprepriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial

statements

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone Ind A5 financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
inferming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on thesematters. We have

determined the matters described below 1o g key audit matters to be communicated in our

report. -

Room No 20. Tnnath Bidg. GC 19, Narayantala

Ramesh Onkar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

E-mail ID : ssharmavivek@gpta eshonkarandco@gmail.com

Kolkata 59, Mobile No.: 9830060929, 8420509129



Information Other than the Standalone Financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

sible for the other information, The other information
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
ility Report, Corporate Governance and
financial statements and our

The Company’s Board of Directors is respon
comprises the information included in the Management
including Annexures 1o Board's Reporl, Business Responsib
Shareholder’s Information, butl does nol include the Standalone

auditor's report thereon

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance canclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing 50, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or ouf knowledge obtained during the course

of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standafone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directars are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable agsfiangEbout whether the Standalone Ind AS financial

statements as a whole are free from mg .
issue an auditor’s report thal includes o EE;L ‘nabie assurance is a high level of assurance,
Ll

agemfiance with 5As will always detect a material

but is net a guarantee that an audit corg & /

misstaternent when it exists. Misstate




material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the nisks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internalcontrol,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of suchcontrols.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made bymanagement.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going cancern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during ouraudit

tatement that we have complied with
and to communicate with them all

We also provide those charged with goveryig
relevant ethical requirements regarding @
relationships and other matters that may rigeis
where applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with g
that were of most significance in the audit of t
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We

report unless law or re
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter chould not be communicated in our

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

pvernance, we determine those matters
ke standalone Ind AS financial statements of the
describe these matters in cur auditor’s

gulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
report because

outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

(Auditor's Report] Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
matters specified in

As required by the Companies

Central Government of India in
2013, we give in the Annexure ("Annexure A") a statement on the

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that!

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

d.

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this

Report are in agreement with the books of account;
d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the

Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
7024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the

Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in ‘Annexure B,

g During the year the Company has not provided for nor paid Managerial Remuneration.

Hence with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, are not applicable.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
Ind AS financial statements .
i) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
i) There has been no delay A Geaplgmige amounts , required to be transferred, to
| v ttad by the Company.
BT

iv) a) The Management had



vi)

vii)

For Ramesh Onkar & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. : 010252C

00 . —

ources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in

or share premium or any other s
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with

any other persons or entities, including
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company(“Ultimate Beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief. no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiary”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures which are considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations made by the Management under sub-clause (iv) (a) and
(iv) (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The Board of Directors of the Company has not proposed any dividend for the year
ended 31st March, 2024,

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules,2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31,2024.

CA. Vivek S Sharma

Partner
Membership No.

: 060135

UDIN: 24060135BKCROKT7513

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30""May,2024



Annexure - A

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS Financial

Statements of M/s Kant & Co. Ltd.

Report on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government in terms

of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government in
terms of sub section (11) of <ection 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of the

audit, we further report that: -

(i) {(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inctqding
quantitative details and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment an d relevant details of
Right ol use Assets.

(B) The Company does not hold any Intangible Assets thus clause 3 (1) (B) is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company. the Compuny has a regular programme of physical verification of
its Property. Plant and Equipment by which all property. plant and equipment are verified at
reasonable intervals of time. In accordance with this programme . certain property. plant and
cquipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) Aceording 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds ol the immovable properties (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the leasc agreements are duly exccuted in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the Financial Statements are held in the name of the Company as al the

Balance Sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) during the year. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(¢) Based on the information and explanations furnished 10 us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act. 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
I'ransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 ol 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
its Financial Statements does not arise.

(i) (a) Physical verification of inventories have been conducted by the management during the
vear which. in our opinion, is at reasonable intervals: and, in our opinion, the oy crage and
procedure of such verilication by the management is appropriate, The discrepancies noticed
on verification between physical stock and book records were not 10% or more in aggregate
For cach class ol inventories




(i)

(1v)

(v)

i sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crore, in

(h) The Company has nat bee Tkt 11EXC )
aporepate, from banks or F'inancial Institutions on the basis of seeurity of current assets:

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of examination of

books and records by us,

(a) A. The Company has not granted any loans or provided advances mllhc nature ol loans or
stood cuarantee or provided seeurity 1o its subsidiarics and associates during the year.

Accordingly. reporting under clause 3uinta)A) of the Order is not applicable.

B. The Company has granted loans or provided advances in the nature of loans or slc:rucl
gsuarantee or provided security 10 parties other than its subsidiaries and associates during
the earlier yvear.

[ Loan or Advance in the nature of Loan o Employees | Amount (Rs in Hundred)
| Balance Amount Outstanding as on 3 1st March 2024 I 939

Loan or Advance in the nature of Loan latlwrs Amount (Rs in Hundred)
Balance Amount Qutstanding as on 31st March 2024 1168862.92 ]

(b) The terms and conditions ol the grant ol loans or advances in the nature of loans, as
referred to (i) (a) (B) above. are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

(c) In respeet of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company under (a)
(B) above, the schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments
are regular,

(d) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. there is no overdue amount for more than

ninety days in respect of loan given.

(¢} No loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company that have fallen due
during the vear. have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over
dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

() The Company has not granted loan 1o the extent to the related parties as defined in section
2(76) of The Companies Act 2013 on repayable of demand.

In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. with respect to the loans
and mvestments made.

On the basis ol our examination ol books and records ol the Company, in our opinion and
according 1o the information and explanations given to us. the company has not accepted
deposits during the year and therelore the directives issued by the Reserve bank of India and
the provisions of Sections 73 10 76 or any other refevamt provisions ol the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable 1o the Company.




(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(N)

(x1)

ation and explanation given by the management. mamtenance of cost records is

As per inform _
nt under section 148(1) of

not required by the company as specitied by the Central Governme
The Companies Act 2013,

{a) In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
including income-tax. Goods & Services Tax. Custom Duty. Cess. Provident fund.
ax ele and any other statutory dues with appropriate authorities. No undisputed
outstanding. at the year end, for a

dues
Professional T
amounts pavable in respect of aforesaid statutory dues were
period of more than six months Trom the date they beeame payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 0 us. no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of income tax, sales tax. value added tax. Goods & Services Tax. duty of
customs. service tax. Provident Fund ete and other material statutory dues were in arrears as
at 31st March 2024 for a period of more than six months on the date they became payable.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Acl,
1961, that have not been recorded in the books ol account.

(a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information & explanation given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of Loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of Interest to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records ol the Company. the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(¢) During the vear the Company has not taken any term loan. Hence the provision of clause
3 (ix) (¢) of the Order relating to application of term loan funds is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) According 10 the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the Balance Sheet of the Company. we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have

been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) The Company has not taken any funds (rom any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(1) The company has not raised any sueh loan during the year. on the pledge of securities held
i its subsidiaries or Jon venture or associates.

(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (a)
of the Order is not applicable

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partially or optionally conmvertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting
tnder Clause 3(x) (b) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(1) According o the information and explanations given 1o us. no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its oflicers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit.




(b) According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. carricd out in accordance with the generally
auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) ol the Act, in Form ADT-

accepted . : : %
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not

4. as prescribed under Rule

required 10 be filed by us with the Central Government

(¢) According 1o the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower

complaints recei ed during the year by the Company.

(xii)  In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us. the Company is
nota Nidhi company. Accordingly. paragraph (i) ol the Order is not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company. transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
cections 177 and 188 of the Act where ever applicable and details ol such transactions have
been disclosed in the linancial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

[ xiii)

(xiv) (a) According to the information and explanations given 1o us. in our opinion the Company has
an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature ol its business of the
Company.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports ol the Company issued till date for the period

under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly. clause 3(xv) of the Order is nol
applicable o the Company.

(xvi) (1) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act. 1934, Accordingly. reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial / housing finance activities
during the year. Accordingly. reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (C1C) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank ol India. Accordingly. reporting under Clause I(xvi)(c) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit.
the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016} does not have any CIC.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year under audit and in the
immediate preceding financial year.

(xviil) There is no change in statutory auditor of the Company during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates glssalization ol linancial assets and payment of financial
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Annexure - B

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements of M/s Kant & Co. Limited :

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Kant & Co. Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial contrals over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reperting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls aver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditoer’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

financial reporting is a process designed to provide
of financial reporting and the preparation of
s in accordance with generally accepted
orting includes those

A company's internal financial control over
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purpose
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial rep :
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)

accurately and fairly reflect
on of

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparati
Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind As financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reparting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over linancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For Ramesh Onkar & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. : 010252C

Woe. . ——

CA. Vivek S Sharma

Partner

Membership No. : 060135
UDIN: 24060135BKCROK 7513

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30"May,2024
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& Co. Ltd
/::l::lﬂ Sheet as at 31 sarch 2024
CIN! lelW'Blgssrl.COzom

Particulars

Notes

(All amounts in INR hundreds ,

31 March 2024

g1 March 2023

1st April 2022

m’ﬂmﬂm

ASSETS 8
Non-current assety 000.35 9,122,
Property, plant and equipment 3 A -~ e
Capital Work in Progress 35,017:71 2,35007.70
Tnvestment properties 1 2,35.011:‘: ..g_moo 44.473.00
Investment in associates 5 s
Financial assets 1,61,029.93 422.588.46
(D Investment 6 H92084 47 8,88,742.92 94204293
W tows 7 g i 349431 6,408.79
(i) Other financial assets 4 .4';38'41 322026 it A
Deferred tax asset (net) 4 14,378.78 ; o
Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 5 2,169.55 !M
Other non-current assets - 0. _M
Total non-current asscts L - ‘
Current 5 PP
l::::lou?: 3 12 52,501-40 AT
Financial assets 184.00 o
()  Investments o4 4'65'?8°£ gﬁ"ﬂ 5,98,538.93
(i) Trade receivables 1« 4.59 3,00 55.683.69
(i) Cash and cash equivalents ’i ;;'m 1,00,93327 487246
(iif) Other Rank Balance 5 28 22,875.48 31,111.48
(iv) Loans 17 6,72,960.06 - 4
(v)  Other financial assets 18 73,701.01
Other current assets g I—
Total current asscts 17,82
Total asscts _&&M
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 20 55:503-00
Other equity 21 ¥ 0.
Totul equity 1.44,833.
Liabilitics
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities "
Deferred tax liability (net) o 2
Other non-current liabilities 2 e o
Provisions = i -
Totul non-current liabilitics - - -
Current liabilities
Financial lisbilitics .
(i) Borrowings 22 37,000.00 39,000.00 40,260.00
(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - " £
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and ’ o o)
small enterprises 23 14,818.11 15,422.03 M -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 13,610.47 11,046.29 :
Other current liabilities 25 12,201.59 M A 231
Provisions _ ik ey
Current tax Linbilities (Nct) 26 = 1,08.445. S

Total current liubilitics

Total cquity and labilitics

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 47

For Ramesh Onkar & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. o10252C

Vivek S Sharma

Partner
Membership No, 060135

Place: kolkata
Date: 3oth May, 2024




& Co. Ltd
A‘: Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
IN: Larag2WihiesaPLCo20773

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Interest Paid
Provision for Dimunition in Value of Investment

Sundry falance W/off
Provision for Doubtful Debts- Trade Recvivabe

Provision for Doubtful Advances
Dividend Income

Interest Tncome

Profit on sale of Motor Car

(Al amounts in INR hundreds, unless otherwise stated)

50,363.28

1,680.87
1,208.34

L8367
46,116.25

(3,764.45)
(20,496.00)

(1,622.31)
(2.416.99)

30,510

Acdjustments for:
Non-Current/Current financial and other assets

(8,43.495.79)

2,170.58
1,400.00
2,49,600.00
2,35.895.63

3.51,418.66

Profit on sale of Investment
Net gain on financial asscts measured ot fair value through profit or loss

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

23,944.28
(4,989.89)

Inventories
Non-Cuerent/Current financial and other liabilities/provisions
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING AC'I'IV'ITI[_’;S
B. [CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equij t
Change in Other Cash Balance
Sale of Fixed Assets

Interest Income

Dividend Income
Purchase of Non Current & Current Investment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from short term borrowings

Reduction of Investment Reserve Fund

Dividend Paid

Interest paid,

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OPENING BALANCE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE

Notes forming parnt of the Financial Statements 1 to g7
Notes-

rates.

For Ramesh Onkar & Assoclates.

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 010252C

Partner
Membership No. 060135

Phuholhu

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with banks in current account. Refer note 15.

(iii) In case of Company's financing activities (including borrowings) there are no non-cash transactions or

(1) The above cashflow statement have been prepared using “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.

(i¥) Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearmanged whether considered necessary 1o conform to enrrent years presentation.

L__Date: 30th May, 2024




Co- Lad
srent of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless

{1L17232WB1952PLCo20773
otherwise stated)

31 March 2024

Notes 31 March 2023 \

Particulars

3,58,400.97 22,55,143-34

INCOME
Revenue from operations o4
28 1 11.42 4
‘,,:?.su.p L :

Other income
Total income

EXPENSES
Purchase of Traded Goods 29 2,78,0!6.36 175087109
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 30 (4,989.89) 3.78,830.43
Employee benefits expense 31 47,031.15 57:645.18
32 1,282.28 1,435.76
1,680.87 2,170.58

Finance cost
33

Depreciation and amortisation excpnses 1,52,028.34
Other expenses
e 4750401 3
50,363.28

Total expenses
Profit before Tax

36 3,938.86 e

Tax expense:
- Current tax

- Earlier year tax : 36

- Deferred tax 36 1 11
Total tax expense (7y778

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income
{tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 572.93
Income tax relating to these items (148.96)
423.97

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year 58,565.50

Earnings per equity share:
Basic and Diluted
(Nominal value per share Rs. 10)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 47
For Ramesh Onkar & Associates.
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the board
Firm registration No. 010252C

We =

Vivek S Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 060135

KAUSIK GUPTA MALINI VINCENT SOANS

Place: kolkata
Date: 3oth May, 2024
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Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Finaneial Statements

1

2.2

2.3

2.4

General Information .

Kant & Co. Limited ( the "Company™)is a listed Public Limited Company incorporated in Indin.The Company has its registered affice at

15, Dr. Rajendm Prasad Sarani  Clive Row) Kolkata- 700001, The Company is well-established tea company that has been providing

‘Pv"""‘i'”-"l quality tea ta its customers. In nddition to tea Business the company is also engaged in trading of Jule Bags/ Non-Waoven/ P P
oven Sacks.

The financial statements as at 31 March 2024 present the financial position of the Company.

The functivnal and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (*INR") which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates,

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 3oth
May, 2024.

Materfal Accounting policies

The Material accounting policies applied by the Company in the prepuration of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance )
The Company has adapted Ind AS notified under the Companies (Tndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from o1 April

2022

These financial statements comply in all material aspeets with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company had been preparing its financial statements upto the year 31 March 2013, as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006 and other relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as Previous GAAP/Indian GAAP),

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards”, with 1 April 2022 s the transition date. In accordance with Ind As 101 "First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standard”, the company has presented a reconciliation from the presentation of financial statements under the ("Previous
GAAP) to Ind AS of total equity 15 at 01 April 2022 and 31 March 2024 and of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2023,

Basis of preparation

These (inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As), under the historical cast
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (to the extent notified) and guildelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Boand of India (SEBI).
The Ind As are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and relevent amendmend rules issued thereafter.

Use of estimates and eritical accounting judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company mekes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumplions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considersd to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affeeted.

Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying amounts of assets and linbilities include useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, provision for employee benefits and other provisions,
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies,

Property, plant and eguipment
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits assoeinted with the

itemn will flow to the Company and its cost con be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially ta
acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs ineurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All
other repair and maintenanee costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss os incarred. When a
replacement oocurs, the carmying amount of the reploced part is derecognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises major components having different useful lives, these components are necounted for as separate itemns,

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less nccumulated depreciation and impairment, Cost includes all direct costs and
expeaditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Borrowing costs,if any, during the
period of construction is eapitalised as part of cost of the qualifying nssets,

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the earrying amount of the
asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition 1o Ind AS, the Company has clected to contingg Mg value of all its prope tty, plant and equipment recognised
as at 1 April 2022 measured as per the previous GAAP andg/f i e as the decmed cost of property, plant and equipment.



Kant & Co. Lid
Notes to Financial Statements

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible nssets

Computer software i
Intangible assets costs are included in the balanee sheet as intangible assets where they are clearly linked to long term economic t:cnclits
for the Company. In this ense they are measured initinlly at putehase cost and then amortised on a WDV basis over their estimated
useful lives, All other costs on software are expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite uscful lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumalated impairment losses,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value of property, plant and cquipment and intangible
asscls

Depreciation and amortisation is caleulated using written down value method to allocate their cost, net of their fﬂidufﬂ values on the
basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are
reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
still in use.

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are:

Categories of nssets Useful life (in vears)
Plant and Machinery 15

Furniture and Fixture 10

Drinking Water 10

Building 60

Vehicles 8-10

Office Equipment 3-10

Software g

Impairment of non-financinl assects
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount,

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separmtely identifinble cash flows which are largely independent
of the cash flows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period,

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupicd by the Company, is
classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initinlly ot its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. All other
repairs and maintenanee costs are expensed when incurred, When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investment properties recognised as at
01 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease where the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are clnssified as operating leases.

Company as lessee

(i) Operating lease — Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economie benefits
from the leased asset are consumed,

(ii) Finance lease — Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of lease, at the lower of the fair value of the property or the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding linbility to the lessor is included in the balance shect as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest.

Company as lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost
increases, The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature,




Kant & Co. Ltd
Noles to Financial Statements
2.10  Finaneial Instruments s

Financial nssets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the t:nnllraclun1 provisions of the
instrument, Financial assets and liabilties are initially mensured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial nsscts and financial linbilities (other than financial nssets and financial liabilities at I'n]r '-fn!ul!_tlhmugh
Profit or loss) ae added 10 or dedueted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial nssets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Effective interest method ) ) .
The effective interest method is o method of enlenlating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or

expense over the relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the finaneial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period,

(a) Financial assets

Cash and eash equivalents ) . )
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits which are readily

convertible into known amounts of eash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of less than three
months from the date of such deposits. These balonces with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Other bank balances ) -
Other bank balances include balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage or having maturities of more

than three months from the date of such deposits,

Financial assets at amortized cost o=
Financinl assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financinl nssets are held within a business model whose objective
is 10 hold these assets in order to collect contractual ensh flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value through

profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected eredit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Company recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction.

For finhncial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initinl recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months
expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the
financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derccognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments are reeorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities such as trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is signifieant.

Borrowings .
Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt ave initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derccognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, concelled or they

expire.




Kant & Co. Ltd
Noles to Financial Statements

2,01

2.12

2.13

2.14

Employee benefits

() Short-term obligations s
Linbilities for wages, salaries and other benefits that are expeeted to be settled whaolly within 12 months after the end m.{ thee P'?ﬂ“d in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' serviees up to the end of the reporting period and
e mensured at the amounts expected to be paid when the linbilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as enrrent employec

benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Post cmployment obligations
Defined contribution plans : .
The Company makes contributions to government administered provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme and pension

fund scheme for the employees. The Company hos no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when

they are due,

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity . _—
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at

the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, ifany. The defined benefit obligation is ealeulated annually by actuarics
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
abligation.

The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets, if any. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they oceur, direetly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained enrnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service eost.

Government grants &
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair valie where there is o reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Campany will comply with all attached eonditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other operating income,

Government grants relating to the acquisition/ construction of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited ta profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented
within other income,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each
provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable 1o temporary differences and to
unused tax losses,

The current income tax charge s caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period,

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the lability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
linbilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements,

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantinlly enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise these temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforeeable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax nssets and tax liabilities are offsct where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised ig other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,




Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements

215

2.16

2,18

219

2.20

2.21

Revenue
The Company has applied IND AS 115 which establishes o comprehensive framework for determining whether , how much and when
revenug is 1o be recognised IND AS 115 replaces IND AS 18 Revenue and IND AS 11 Construction Contracts.

Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company andrihe revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value n{ the consideration received or
receivable net of discounts, taking into account contractually defined terms and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the

Bovernment.

Sale of goods )
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No

revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs or the possible return
of goods.

Sale of services ;
Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered on percentage of completion method,

Rental income
Revenue from renting is recognised on acerual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

Income recognition
a) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the prineipal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

b) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the sharcholder’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Inventorics
Inventories are valued at lower of cast, computed on first in first out (FIFQ) basis, and net realisable value. Cost of inventories include

all cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Research and development
Revenue expenditure on research and development is recognised as a charge in the Statement Profit and Loss. Capital expenditure on
assets acquired for research and development is added to Property, plant and equipment, if any.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share is ealeulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity share holders, by the weighted

average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contingent Linbilities
Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent and
disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the finnacial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Hundred as per the requirments of

Schedule 111, unless stated otherwise.
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Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes (o Pipnm-ial Stalements

(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless
otherwise stated)

Note: 4 Investment properties

(n) Investment Properties

Particulars

Opening gross carmng amount / Deemed cost
Additions

Closing gross Carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge
Closing accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount

31 March 2024

2,35.017.71

2,35,017.71

31 March 2023

2,35.017.71

2,35,017.71

1 April z022

2.35.017.71

Z.35:017.71

2,35.017.71

2,35,017.71

2,35.017.71

The Company has recognised 14,640.00 and 8,909.68 as operating income for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively with regards o the aforesaid
Property’,

The Campany has recognised 3,103.65 and 3,966.41 as directly identifiable expenses for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively with regards to the

Note: 5 Investment in associales

(i)

Particulars

Tavest Li ity i (full 14 up)
Unquoted:

1400 (31 March 2023:110400, 1 April 2022: 110400) equity shares of Soharipadam Trading
Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each

141500 (31 March 2023: 141500, 1 April 2022: 141500) equity shares of Behubor Investments
Ltd having face value of Bs. 10 each

135000 (31 March 202%: 135000, 1 April 2022: 135000) equity shares of Jardine Pest
Management Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each

124850 (31 March 2023: 124850, 1 April 2022: 124850) equity shares of Diamond Produet
Printing & Processing Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each

55000 (31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2o22: Nil) equity shares of Chairana Tea Dealers Pvt Ltd
having face value of Rs. 10 cach

31 Murch 2024

13,248.00

41,175.00

5.500.00

31 March 2023

13,248.00

41,175.00

5.500.00

1 April 2022

13.248.00

3117500

49.923.00

49,923.00

44.423.00

Nole: 6 Investments - non current

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
{A) Quoted & Fully Paid-up
L)INVESTMENT IN CquIty Shares o GIoUp COMPAanIes aesIENated at AmoTrused cost
{fully paid up):
20035 (41 March 2023: 20035, 1 April 2022: 20035) equity shares of Jardine Henderson
Limited having face value of Rs. 10 each 9,109.04 ,100.04 9,109.04
60407 {31 March 2o023: 60407, 1 April 2022: 60407) equity shares of Dhelakhat Tea Co. Lid
having face value of Bs. 10 each 16,020.59 15,020,509 16,020.59
100687 (31 March 2023: 100687, 1 April 2022; 100687) equity shares of Rydak Syndicate Co.
Lydl having face value of Rs. 10 each 24,102.43 24,102.473 24,102,473
(ii) Investment in tqu:'ty shares designated at FVTPL (fully paid up):
o000 (31 March 2023: 30000, 1 Apnl 2022: 30000) equity shares of P.K Leasing & Finance
Ltd hoving face value of Rs. 10 each 6,755.00 6,759.00 6,756.00
2380 {31 March 2023: 2376, 1 April 2022: 2376) equity shares of TCS Ltd having face value of
Rs. 1 each 92,706.82 76,172.18 88,8612
191705 (31 March 2023: 1191705, 1 April 2022: 1191705) equity shares of Ontrack Systems Lid
having face value of Rs. 10 each 2,38.341.00 2,98.941.00 2,98 54100
180 (31 March 2023: 200, 1 April zo22: Nil) equity shares of Wipro Ltd having face value of Rs.
2 each B63.03 790.50
200 (31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of HDFC Bank Ltd having face value
of Rs. 1 each 2,503.20 2
100 {31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2oz2z2: Nil) equity shares of Colgate Pomolative Lid having face
value of Rs. 1 each 2,681,873 i ]
235 (31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022 Nil} equity shares of Infosys Ltd having face value of Rs,
5each 3.531.53 ¢
500 (31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of ITC Ltd having face value of Rs. 1
cach 2,148.30
10 (31 March 2o23: Nil, 1 April 2ozz2: Nil) equity shares of Larsen & Turbo Ly ¥ e
of Rs, 2 each A7h.72 =
500 {31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Tata Steel Lt
Rs. 1 cach T75.85 - #




Particulars

10 (31 March 2023: Nil. 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Ultratech Cement having face value

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

of Bs, 10 each a977.62 = =
£ 10 (31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Axis Bank Ltd having face valie of
Bs. 1 each = 105,03 =
100 (41 March 20231 Nil, 1 April 2022: NiT) equity shares of Adani Port and Special Economic
zone Ltd having face value of Rs. 2 pach 193699 - -
4,02,738.98 M-z:m 3,83.193.27
(B) Unquoted & Fully Paid-up
() Investment in equity shares of Group companics designated at amortised cost
(fully paid up):
14750 (31 March 2023: 14750, 1 April 2022: 14750) equity shares of Sangam Investments Ltd
having face value of Rs. 10 each 81100 81100 800
25700 (31 March 2023: 25700, 1 April 2022: 25700) equity shares of Bararee Investments & "
Lesing Co. L1d having face value of Rs, 10 each 2,506.25 2,590.25 2.5960.25
(i) Investment in equity shares of designated at amortised cost (fully paid up):
67554 (31 March 2023: 67554, 1 April 2022: 67554) equity shares of Beliss India Lid having face
value of Rs, 10 each ¥ - -
30000 (31 March 2023: 30000, 1 April 2022: 30000) equity shares of Om Kant Infrastrueture oo
Development Pyt Ltd havi ng face value of Rs. 10 each 2,000.00 1,000.00 3.000.
15000 (31 March 2023: 15000, 1 April 2022: 15000) equity shares of Alpana Realtors Pyt Lad -
{Formerly RKJ Realtors Pyt Ltd) having face value of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500,
7\907.25 T.007.25 7.907.25
(iii) Investment in Preference shares designated at FVTPL (fully paid up): .
2000000 (31 March 2923: 2000000, 1 April 2022: 2000000) Preference shares of Beliss India
Lid baving face value of Rs. 10 each = "
(iv) Investment in Bonds at amortised Cost (fully paid up): 31,487.94 11,487.04 31,487.94
4:42,134.17 4,10,620.93 4,22,588.46
Less Provision for Dimunition in value of Investment 2,49,600.00 2.49,600.00 -
Total non current investments (net) 1,92,534.17 1,61,029.93 4,22,588.46
() Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 1,57.638.08 1,26,134.74 3.83.193.27
(b} Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 34.895.19 44,895.10 49,395.19

* Provision for Dimunition in Value of Investment was made against P.K Leasing & Finance Ltd, Ontrack Systems Ltd, Om Kant infrastructure Development

Pvt Ltd and Alpana Realtors Pvt Lid




Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements

Note: 7 Loans - non current

Particulars

(Al smounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April zo22

ns v, ;
Other Advances 8,88,742.02 8,88,742.92 9.12,042.93
TOTAL 8,88,742.02 8,88,742.92 9.12,042.93
Note:

8 Other financial assets - non current

Pa l-"ﬁl:u]nrs

g1 March 2024

41 March 2023

1 April 2022

Fixed deposits with more than 12 months maturity* 24,700.00 - 2,664.48
Seeurity Deposits 3,778.01 3,494.31 3.744-31
TOTAL 28,478.01 3.494.31 6,408.79

Note: 9 Deferred tax asset (net)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Deferred Tax Assets
on Property Plant & Equipment 2,798.18 3,220.26 11,691.73
on Alowance for Doubtful Debis- Trade Receivable 11,990,253 - £
TOTAL 14,788.41 3,220.20 11,691.7;
MNote: 10 Non-Current Tax Assels (Net)
Particulars 21 March 2024 = 31 March zo023 1 April 2022
Advance Tax (Net of Provision) 14,378.78 . 3,058.84
TOTAL 14,378.78 - 3,058.84

Note: 11 Other non-current assels

Particulars 31 March 2zo24 = 31 March 2023 1 April zoz22
Surplus in Gratuity Fund (Refer Note No. 41) 2,169.55 1,582.04 665.19
TOTAL 2,160.55 1,582.04 665.14

MNote: iz Inventorics

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1April 2022

Stock in trade
(i) Shares
Quoted 78.23 184.00 248.80
Unguoted 34,387.77 3438777 34.387.77
(it} Traded Goods 18,125.40 13,029.74 16,795.37
(i) Mutual Fund - 3,75.000.00
TOTAL 52,501.40 47,601.51 4,20,431.9

MNote: 13 Investmenlts

Particulars

Investment in Mutual Fund designated at FVTPL(fully paid up):

31 March 2024

4,65,330.97

31 March 2023

4,14,184.00

1 April zo22

TOTAL

4,65,330.07

4,14,184.00




MNote: 14 Trade receivables

Paiticulars

31 March 2024

91 March 2023

1 April zo22

Unsecured, considered gaod 4.96,565.72 5.07,808.42 5,08,538.03

Unsecured, considered doultful 9,131.54 : z

Less: Allowance for dowlbtfil delsts {46,116.25) - -
TOTAL 4,59,581.01 5,07,808.42 5.08,538.93

Refer note 39 for risk relating to trade receivables

|Nul'.l;: 15 Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

Cash in hand 181.10 28.58 79715
Balances with banks:
- in eurrent accoint 17,811.33 43,814.51 54.886.
TOTAL 17,992.43 43,853.00 55,683.60

|Note: 16 Other Bank Balanee

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April z022

Unpaid Dividend Account 64.00 64.00 94,00
Fixed Deposit with originil maturity of more than three months but less 48,646.76 1,00,830.27 4,778.46
than 12 months

TOTAL 38,740.76 1,00,033.27 4,872.46

MNote: 17 Loans - current

Particulars a1 March 2024 = 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Unsecured, Considered Goods

L8] 1 Adv, G

Loan to Staff 939.10 1,774-10 5:345.00

Other Advance 7,08,113.20 8,55,213.20 9,48,413.20

Inter Corporate Deposit 2,10,000.00 2,10,000.00 3,23,200.00

Interest Receivable 15.326.42 7,906.84 1,54,153.28
10,24,378.72 10,74,204.14 14,31,111.48

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts on other advances 3,51,418.66 3.51.418.66 <

TOTAL 6,72,060.006 7,22 875.48 14,31,111.48

Note: 18 Other financial assets - current

Particulars

g1 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

Security Deposit - 2,000.00
Advance to Others 7:3,701.01 72,196.01 2,71,944.41
TOTAL 73,701.01 72,196.01 2.73.934.41

Note: 19 Other current asscts

Balance with Govt Authorities
Advance Against Expenses

a1 March 2024

1,408.609

31 March 2023

1,016.47
650.00

1 April 2022

191.19

1,408.69

1,666.47

689.37
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Kant & Co, 1.1d

™ & 2 -
otes to Financial Statements [All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

Note: 21 Other cquily

g1 March 2024 31 March 202z 1 April 2022

Rexerves and surplis

.|1 :El'.'l-\mlu:l'!! Reserve Fund sasniao Tt '? >
) lvsiment R 27,54,501.29 27,5d4.590.29 27,54.591.29
e e (1,34,782.24) {1,93.347.74) 7,83,615.44
et s L 90,89,240.55 30,30,675.05 43,20,580.6,

31 March 2024 a1 March 2023

Heserves and surplus
al bnvestment Reserve Pund

Opeming balance 4.69,431.50 7.82,379.90
Lena: Written off during the vear = 3,12,948.40
Closing balance 4,69,4731.50 4.69,431.50
b)) General Reserve
Opening balapee 27.54.591.29 27,54.591.29
Add: Amonnt Transferred from ratained earning = =
Closing balance 27,54,591.29 27,54.591.2
b)) Betained carmings
Cpening balance (1,93.347.74) 7.83.615.44
Add: Net profilf (loss) for the year 58,141.53 (9.60.469.83)
Less: Dividend Paid - (5.559.30]
Less: Transfer to Genereal Reserve <
Tiers of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings .
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit abligation, net of 1ax 423.97 {1,934.05)
IndAS Entry
Closing balance {1,34,782.24) (1,93.347.74)
Total reserves and surplus 30,80,240.55 . 30.30.675.05

Nature and purpose of other rescrves

(i) General reserve

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created throogh an annoal transfer of net profit ot a specified percentage in sccordance with applicable
regulations, Consequent to introduction of Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to mandatory transfer o specified percentage of the net profit (o general reserve has been
withdrawn though the Company may transfer such pereentage of its profits for the financial year as it may consider appropriate. Declaration of dividend ot of such reserve shall
not be made except in accordance with rules prescribed in this behall under the Act.

(ii) Retained earnings
Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer 1o general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid 1o sharcholders,




o Kant & Co, Ltd
Notes to Finaneial Statements

Note: 22 Borrowings - current

{All amounts in INK hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

Unecured
:';:;: o Hetatod Farty 12,000,00 14,000.00 15.260.00
" 25.000.00 25.000.00 25,000.00
OTAL 37, 000,00 A0 00 0, 200,00
Note: 23 Trade pavables

| earticulars a1 March zozg 31 March zo23 1 April zo022
Trade Payables (Refer note 44) 14,818,101 15.422.03 12,054.88
TOTAL 14.818.11 15.422.05 12,054 08

Natet 24 Other financial liabilities - current

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 L April 2022

Payable to Employees 1,530.25 2,749.35 1,620.60
Sccur_nt;.' Deposit 6,050.00 6,050.00 2,000.00
Unpaid Dividend 94.00 G400 94.00
Other Pavable 5.0736.22 2,152.94 2E0.00

TOTAL 13,610,47 11,040,210 4.004.60
Note: 250ther current liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2024 a1 March zo23 1 April 2022
Statutory dues pavable 1,091,360 941.97 3,211.86
Advance from Customer 1,200,23 300 -

TOTAL 2.201.59 Q46,497 238G

Note: 26Current tax Liabilities (Net)

Current tax liabilities (Net of Advance Tax)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023
1,08,445.43

1 April zoz2

TOTAL

1,08.445.43




Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements

Note: 27 Revenue from operations

Particulars

Income from sale of Black Tea
Income from sale of Jute Bags
Income from sale of My Brew
Income from sale of Mutual Fund
Income from sale of Share

{all amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise
stated)

Total

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,30,533.37 4,86,461.77
1,17,923.25 97,861.30

526.77 -
: 16,70,496.53
9,417.58 323.74
3,58,400.97 22,55,143.34

Note: 28 Other income

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dividend 3,704.45 6,274.07
Tea Waste Sale - 1,092.00
Interest on Bank Fixed Deposits 2,761.43 1,679.80
Interest on Bond 3,034.57 4,045.00
Interest on Corporate Deposit 14,700.00 14,700.00
Interest on IT Refund 213.73
Interest others 81,830.66 26,710.26
Miscellaneous Receipts 38.76 84.75
Profit on sale of Investments measured at FVTPL 3,416.99 -
Car Hire Charges 997.56 1,370.88
Rent 14,076.00 8,9090.68
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1,622.31 1,041.57
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 41,454.96 (11,575.64)
Total 1,67,911.42 53,332-37

Note: 29 Purchase of Traded Goods

Particulars 31 March zo24 31 March 2023
Furchase of Mutual Funds - 12,74,980.00
Purchase of Black Tea 1,63,211.29 3,96,103.19
Purchase of Jute Bags 1,04,555.13 8g,288.90
Purchase of My Brew 10,250.00 "

2,78,016.36 17,60,372.09

Note: 30 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening stock

Shares 34.57L.77 34,636.57

Traded Goods 13,0290.74 16,705.37

Mutual Fund - 3,75,000.00
47.601.51 4,26,431.04

Closing stock

Shares 34,460.00 34,571.77

Traded Goods 18,125.40 13,020.74

Mutual Fund - -
52,501.40 47,601.51

(4,989.89) 3,78,830.43




Note: 31 Employee benefits expense

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March zo23
‘:;ﬂm?-“-- wages, bonus ete, 42,082.50 48.713.22
G“mn_b““m" to provident,pension & other funds 3.187.22 4185.95
ratuity (Note No., 41) 885.28 1,004.01
Staff welfare exXpenses 876.15 3,742.00
Total 37,031.15 57,045.18
Note: 32 Finance cost
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bank Charges 13.94 35.76
Interest on Unsecured Loan 1,268.34 1,400.00
Total 1,282.28 1,435.76
Note: 33 Depreciation and amortisation exepnses
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipments (Note 3) 1,680.87 2,170.58
Total 1,680.87 2,170.58
Note: 34 Other expenses
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Auditor's remuneration [Refer note 43] 470.00 390.00
Branch Expenses - 314.67
Computer Expenses 108.00 173.00
Director's Fee 1,050.00 500.00
Electricity Charges 700.30 2,478.35
Exhibition Expenses 3,250.49
Freight Charges 3,541.24 3,002.61
Legal & Professional Charges 27,812.59 20,710.89
Brokerage Expenses 1,018.15 3.481.54
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,846.86 6,257.83
Motor Car Expenses 108.18 512.99
Municipal Tax 2,039.28 2,039.28
Printing and Packing charges 10,337.57
Rates & Taxes 2,043.01 5114.73
Rent 2,504.44 62.16
Repair & Mainténance : o
Building 1,014.17 1,930.13
Others 5,183.06 4,243.59
Telephone Charges 126.11 165.14
Travelling & Conveyence 6,470.25 4,520.37
Custody Fees 165.20 1,070.00
Registrar Fees 60,18 5100
Job Work 31,117.30 55.584.89
Donation 100,00 2,000.00
Sundry Balance W/off 1,.836.71 2,35.805.63
Provision for Doubtful Debts- Trade Receivable 46,116.25 -
Provision for Doubtful Advances - 3,51,418.66
Provision for Diminution in value of Investment - 2,49,600.00
Total 1,52,028.34 9,51,517.40

TN
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{All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise
stated)

Nate : 35 Earning Per Share'

| Particulurs

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{a) Profit antributable to equity holders of the company vsed in caleulating basic and diluted earnings
pér share

58,141.53 (9,69,469.83)
(b) Weighted avernge number of equity shares used as the denominator in caleulating basic and 5.55.930 555,930
diluted earnings per share (in numbers)
{c} Nominal value of Equity Share (in Rs.) 10,00 10.00
{d) Basic and diluted earnings per share 10,40 {174.39)
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Note 36: Income tax expense

{All amounts in INR hundreds , unless
otherwise stated)

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows amounts that are recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehenive income and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items.

Particulars 41 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
I.'a) 'ﬂculn(' fox cxpense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the yvear

Profit and loss 3.938.86 -
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 1,16,823.04
Total current tax expense 3,938.86 1,16,823.04
Deferred tax
(Drecrease) increase in deferved tax liabilities (n,717.01) 9,151.00
Excess provision of earlier tax - =
Tolal deferred tax expense/(benefit) (11,717.11)} 9,151.00
Income tax expense (7,778.25) 1,25,974-04
Particulars 31 March 2024 = 31 March 2023
Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Current tax on profits for the year

Profit and loss 3.038.86 -

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods . 1,16,823.04
Total current tax expense (A) 4.938.86 1,16,823.04
Deferred tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Deferred taxes (11, 717.11) §.151.00
Total deferred tax expense recognised in profil or loss (B) {11.717.11) §,151.00
Deferred tax expense recognised in Other comprehensive income
Deferred taxes {148.06) 679.5%
Total deferred tax expense recognised in Other comprehensive income (C) (148.96) 79-33
Total deferred tax for the year (B+C) (11,866.07) 9,830.53
Total income lax expense recogniscd in profit or loss (A+B) (7, 778.25) 1,25,074.04
Total income tax expense recognised in Other
comprehensive income (C) (148.96) 7%:53
Total income tax expense (A+B+C) {7,927.21) 1,26,653.57

(h) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Particulars

531 March 2024

31 March 2023

Profit before tax 50,363.28 (8,43,495.79)
Tax at the rate of 26.00% (2o022-23 - 26.00%) 13,094.45 al
Adjustments for carry forward loss (9,273.23) =
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 1,16,823.04
Difference in tax rate for sale of investments (9:51) -
Impact due to changes in tax rates (B11.67) 9,151.00
Net gain on fair valuation of investments on which no deferred tax created {10,778.29) -
Total income tax expense/(credit) {7.778.25) 1,25,974.04
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Note 47: Capital management
(a) Risk management
The company’s objectives when managing capiial are to:
* saleguard their ability to continue as o going concern, so that they can conlinue o provide relarms for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

* maintain an optimal capital strocture (o reduee the east of capital,

The capital siructure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the apprapriate balanee of key eléments in order 10 meet its strotegic “d_daj"t'?dﬂ needs,
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjusiments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of the Anancial covenants. The
funding requirement is met through the equity, given by the shareholder.

In andier 1o maintain or adjnst the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid 1o shareholders, issue new shares.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong c&l'!ilil structure with a forus on total equity so as lo maintain investor, creditors and markel confidence and to
susiain future development and growth of its business. The Company will lake appropriate steps in order to maintain, or il necessary adjust, its capital structure.

The amount mentioped under total equity in balance sheet i considered as Capilal,

(b} Dividends paid and proposcd

Particulars 3 31 March 2024 31 March zaz3

(i) Equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2023 - Rs, Nil {1 Apri, 2022 - Rs. 10 ) per fully i p—
paid share "
Dividend Distribution Tax °

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In addition 1o the above dividends, Due 1o carry forward of losses Uhe board has unable 10

recommended the payment of a final dividend for the period under review (31 March 2023- . *
Nil):

Tax on proposed dividend
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Note 38: Falr value measurements
Financial instromenty |

AR amounts in INK hundreds , unkess otherwise stated)

FE ]
31 March 2024 31 March 2an2j 2 April 20
: - r y Amortised cost
Ao g FVPL PVOCT  Amortised cost FVFL FVOCT  Amortlsed eost FYPL il it
Financial asyepy
5703931
Investments in equity instruments LOBACE.5 52.639.31 ] - 5243931 :.uqﬁt 11 : g
Invesiments in debentures 5 . 48794 = h 31AB7.54 E
Investments in mutisal funds 1 . 4,04, 184,00 - i 2 04204203
Oher Loans & Advanoes QMK.ID“F-' AN, 7292 = - H.BB.742.92 : . .';-?‘“ 2
Security Deponits -~ L8 oi RELE B
Fiaed Breposit (Margin Money) with eeriglttal maturity ! 2,664 48
exceeding 13 monihs - . 24,700 060 : . 548,538 99
Trade receivable . #.50,581.01 . > §,07.808.42 % 5568365
Cash balances . . 17,9924 - . 43,853.00 g 487246
Other bank balances i . . 3874076 ; lonsaaty : 534500
Loan 1o Stadf = . 539,00 * F (e B Z PRy
Inter Corporute Deposit - 1.10.000.00 2] z 14 P v , 154,155 28
Interest Receivabile i 1532042 = 2 7.306 - aAl413 20
Oher Advances = AAD By 5y 2 !"c_g'mz: ’ 27304441
Advance 1o Others - T roLol = - - . 22904
T otal Tinhncial asacis 77,776 - 2364745 4.1, 0806R = 24,24,000.75 3,971, 061.21 F3T0.225.5
Financal hiobilities
- - A0, 256 000
Barrowings * J7000.00 5] TR0 - 12,554 HE
- - 14 il * 1542203
Trade payahle 4.8 = iGz0bg
Fayahle to Employees = = 153035 ] . A 2, e300
i = - ,050.00 = . [ = 4
Security Depotits . o TR
Unpald Dividend 2 - 00 - - e ) Jere
Other Payables - - 503633 3 = et YT
T atal finpncial Tiahilitics = = 65,428 20 - - fs 46H8.93 - A
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d i (Al amouits in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)
Naote 49: Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities are exposed (o a variety of Ananeial risks; eredit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (L.e. foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk)

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is expased to and how the entity manages the risk:

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Crecht risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis Diversification of customer base,
receivables and financial assets Crudit ratings diversification of bank deposits,
measured at amortised cost. Customer credit limits

Ligurdaty rick Fanineial liabilities thot are settled by |Cash flow forecasts Availability of commatted credit lines and
delivering cash or another financial borrowing facilities
assel,

Market risk - % Investments i equily secuntics Sensitivity annlysis Portfolio diversification

i) security prices

{A) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to setthe their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company penodically assesscs
financial reliability of customers and other counter partics, taking into account the financial condition, current econamic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and
ageing of financial assets. Individual rigk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information

It cansiders reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

it) Actoal or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

i) Financial or ecenomic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,

iv) Significant increase ineredit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery,

The Company measures the expected eredit loss of trade receivables from individual eustomers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment
in which the entity operates, Loss rates are hased on actun] credit loss experience and past trends,

i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer eredit risk management. Trade receivables
are non-inferest bearing and are generally carmying 45 to 9o days credit terms. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various
levels within nrg,ani.r.iti[m to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation.

The ageing of trade receivables as of balance sheet date is given below, The age analysis have been considered from the due date:

Particulars " Less than six | More than six Total
months manths
Trade receivable as on 31 March 2024 (Gross) 48, B60.54 4. 50,896.72 508 607.26
Less: Provision for impairment loss + {46,116.25)
Trade receivable as on 31 March 2024 (Net) 48.860.54 4,56,836.,72 4.50.581.01
Trade recenalble as on 31 March 2029 {Gross) 74, 715.31 4.13,493.11 507,808 42
Less: Provision for impairment loss . - -
Trade receivable as on 41 March 2025 (Net) 74,315.31 31349311 5.07.808.42
Trade recervable as on 3 Apnl 2022 (Gross) 23,595.45 57503348 5.98.538.93
Less: Provision for impairment loss . = .
Trade receivable as on 1 April 2022 (Net) 27.505.45 5.75.011.48 5.08.578.01

The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date. Refer note 14 for details on the impairment of trade receivables. The maximum expasure to credit nsk
at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 4o, The Company does not hold collateral as security

g1 ;
= [ i
F i} Bl
Undisputed — considered pood 48.860.54 090,275.95 1,15,523.53 24,767.03 2,26,270.21 5,05,697.26
Undisputed — Credit Impaired - - . % = .
Disputed - considered good - - & e 2 =
Disputed - consigered doubtful . g : - . =
Trade receivables due 48.860.54 90,275.95 1,15.52.5% 24,767.03 2,26,270.21 5,05,607.26
Less: Allowance for Credit Loss 46.116.25
Total trade receivahles 48,860.54 90,275.05 1,15,523.55 24,767.07 2,26,270,21 4.59.581.01
{1 ) d
. - : :
Undisputed — considered good 74.315.51 : 93,198.13 49,439.68 2.42,314.49 =.07,808.62
Undisputed — Credit Impaired (el = - = :
Dispuled - considered good J/Eyd e Tk = = = =

o
0

P/

.

»
o
\\ ﬁ"@;

—




Disputed - considered doubtful

Trade reccivables due 74.315.51 48,540 81 03008173 40,419.68 2,42,314.49 507, HB08.62
Less: Allowance for Credit Loss ‘
[Total trade recelvabics TR 48.540.81 93, 108.13 40.4:39.68 2,42.314.49 5.07,808.62

; Particulars
Undisputed = considered o

Less than 6
months

As at April 1, 2022

6 months -1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

23,505.45 17,122.21 92.747.29 jo018.26 | 169,230.01 B3 0)2E
Undisputed ~ Cregdit Impaired = = - - - ;
Disputed - considered ool = LI S
Disputed - considered doubtiul - - - - :
Trade receivables due 23.505.45 17,122.21 02,747.29 30,018.26 4,35.145.72 5.98.534.93
Less: Allowance for Credit Loss ]
Total trade receivables 23,505.45 17.122.21 92,747.29 30,018.26]  4.35.145.72 5.98.510.93

if) Financial instruments and deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in sccordance with the Company’s p-uln:y.limtslmmls
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty, Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the
Companies' Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Companies’ Finance Committee. The limits are set ta
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk was 22,64,323.45 as at 31 March 2024,
24,24,030.75 a2 4t 31 March 2o23, being the total of the carrying amount of trade receivables and other financial assets,
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Note: 40 Finanelal Ris
(ny Liquidily risk

k munagement (continued)

(Al nmounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

1‘]"[“(“":" risk is the risk that an EIIIi.I}' will encounter {I“ﬁ.fllh!’ in lﬂl‘l‘liﬂ.ﬂ ghliﬂntin“; nxsociated with financial linbilities that are settled by delivering cash or

another financial asset,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally

performed in secordance with practice and limits set by the Company.

(1) Maturities of Anancial Babilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

= all financial liahilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balances due within 12 months equal their carmying balances as the impact of

discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of finonciul llabilities

31 March 2024

Less than 1 year

More than i year

Borrowings A7.000.00 37,000.00
Trace payvable 14,818.11 14,818,110
Payable to Employees 1,540,25 1,590.25
Security Deposits 6,050.00 b.050.00
Unpaid Dividend , G4.00 94.00
Other Poyaliles 5,0:30.22 5.036,22
Total financial liabilities 65,428.58 65.428.58

Contractual maturitics of financial liabilitics

a1 March 2023

Less thon 1 year

Borrowings 49,000.00 39,000.00
Trade payable 15.422.03 15.422.09
Payvable to Emploveess 2,749.35 2,749.35
Security Deposits 6,050.00 6,050.00
Unpaid Dividend §4.00 94,000
Other Payvubles 2,152.94 2,152,094
Total financial linbilities 65,468.32 65,468.32

Conlractual maturities of inancial liahilities
1 April 2022

Less than 1 year

Borrowings 40,260.00 40,260.00
Trade payable 12,554.88 12,054.88
Payable to Emplovers 1,620.69 1,620.60
Security Deposits 2,000, 00 200000
Unpaid Dividend 94.00 0400
Other Payubles 25000 250000
Total financial liahilities 57,179.57 57:179.57
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i hundreds , unless otherwiss stated)
{C) Markel risk {(All amounts in INR hu
(i} Foreign currency risk
::&nmm T‘n? Tk 18 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates
FANY's lransactions are denominated only in INR and hence the Company is not exposed to any foreign currency nisk

(ii) Interest rate risk

l:ﬁl:nrcm rate risk i the risk that the fair value o future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed 1o
BES In market interest rates because it does not have any floating rate borrowings nor does it have any varable rate financial asscis,

the risk of

(i) Price risk
(a) Exposure
The nisk that the fair value or future cash Nows of & financial instrument will fluetuate because of changes in market prices {cther than those arising from interest rate risk of currency risk),

Whether thase changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments Iﬂdﬁ! in the market
The company's expasite to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the company in equity securities and classified in the balance sheet as at fair value through profit and loss
ACcoing

(b} Sensitivity
The table below summuarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the share prices on the Company’s equity.

Impact on profit before tax Impact on other component of equity

a1-Mar-23 Ai-Mar-23 Fi-Mar-2.4 a1-Mar-23

Increase by g% (2024 5%)* 32,893 24,341 21,284

[Decrease by 5% (2023 S%J° [ (32,897)] (28,761)] 24,341 21.283)
* Halding all other variables constant

Particulars
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Note : 41 Employee benefit obligations

(i) Defined contribution plan

]

{(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident
fund which is defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss s they acerue. The amount recognised ns an expense towards contribution to Provident and other fund

for the year nggregates 1o 3,187.22 (2022-23: 4185.95).

(ii) Post-employment obligations
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in Indin as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service fora
period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the emplovees last drawn basic (including
dearness allowance) salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days (reckoning 26 days for a month) salary multiplied for the number of years of
service. The gratuity plan is a unfunded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India.

Rased on actuarial valuation, a provision is recognised in full for the projected ebligation over and above the funds held in scheme.

(i} Balance sheef recognition

) Grafuil
The ammmgmiﬂ:{] in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:
Particuias Present value Fair value of plan Net amount
of obligation assels Liabilty/ (Assets)
1 April 2022 37.839.16 38.504.30 (665.14)
Current senvice cost 1,0484.01 - 1,004.01
Past service cost - - -
Interest expense/(income) - - =
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1,004.01 - 1,00.4.01
Remeasurentents
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest - 94277 (942.77)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial sssumptions (2,286.07) - (z.286.07)
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience 5,842 42 - 5.842.42
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 3.556.35 942.77 2,613.58
Employer contributions/ premutm paid - 4.534.49 {4.534-49)
Benefit pavments {28.558.27) (28,558.27) -
i-Mar-23 13.841.25 15.423.29 (1,582.04)
Y Present value Fair value of plan Net amount
Farticalane of obligation rioida Liabilty/ (Assets)
1 April 2023 13,841.25 15423.29 (1,582.04)
Current service cost 1,033.62 1,033.02
Interest expense/{income) 1.010.41 1,158.75 {148.34)
Tolal amount recognised in profit or loss 2,044.03 1,158.75 885.28
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest = (124.74) 124.74
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumplions 85.30 x Bs5.30
Actuarial (gain)/loss from unespected experience (782.97) - (782.497)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (697.67) (124.74) (572.91)
Employer contnbulions/ premium pad Hog.86 (Hog.46)
Benefit payments - - -
F1-Mar-z24 15,187.61 17,357.16 (2.169.55}




!I.":? Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
= "_’Fmﬁm“l actuarinl assumptions were as follows:
Particulars

: 41 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 720% 0%
Expected return on plan asset 7.20% 7.30%
Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality mte TALM (zo12-14) table] IALM (2012-14) table

ultimate ultimate
Oisabillty Rate 5% of Mortality Rate | 5% of Mortality Rate
Withdrawal rate 1% to BY% 1% 10 8%
Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years
Average Future Service 1.6 14.6
(1) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation ta changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Particulars a1 March 2024 a1 March 2023
Increase Deerease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (-/+ 1%} (780.41) 947.03 (773.78) 938.68
Salary growill mate (-7 + 1R 958.09 (Boa.76) 950.54 (707.67)
Withdrawal rate (- + 1%) 164.99 {125.33) 16,38 {119,86)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all sther assumplions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in sotne of the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected umit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balanee sheet,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitvity analysis did not change compared 1o the prior period.

(vi} The major categories of plan assets
The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India, The Company dees not have any liberty to manage the funds provided to
insurance companies. Thus the composition of each major category of plan assets has not been disclosed.

{wii) Risk cxposure
Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to o number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investment risk:

The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India. The Company does not have any liberty 1o manage the funds provided to
insumance companies.

Imterest risk:
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan lisbility,

Life expeclancy:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and
at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Salary growth yisk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary of the
plan participants will increase the plan liability,

(viii) Defined bengfit linbility and employer contributions
The Best Estimate Contribution for the Company during the next year would be Bgé.52.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 2.72 years (31 March, 2022 - 3.67 years). The expected maturity analysis of
undiscounted gratuity benefits is as follows:

3 - 5yecars More than 5 years
31 March, z024
Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 6749.4% 8,142.87 - 1,69%.53
Tolal 679 8,142.87 - 1,6

Less than 1 Fed CArS More than 5 years
year

31 March, 2023

|Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 57406 7.520.81 - 1,517.84

Total 570,56 7,520.81 - 1.517.84
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Note: 42 Contingent Linbilitics

Particulars J1-Mar-24 J1-Mar-23

Lontingent Liabilitics not provided for @

Nobe: 494 Other notes

a) Auditors’ Remuneration

Particulars Fi-Mar-24 qui-Mar-23

(a) Andit Fres 250,00 250,00

(b) Tax Audit Fees L0000 .

2] Llmited Review 120,00 oo
. 470.00 G000

I} The Company hax measured Investment in Equity shares of Group Companies ol amartised Cosi at the date of transitbon io Ind AS.

e} Additional Regulatory information required by Schedule 111 . .
(1) Mo proceedings inftiated or pending sgainst the Company for holding any benamid property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder,
(i} The Company has not been sanctioncd any working eapital limits frem Banks or Financial institutions on the hasis of security of current assels.

(i1} The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any Bank or Financial institution or other lender.
(] The Company has no transactions with the corpanies Strick off under the Companies Act, 1956,
{¥i) The Company has nol entered inlo any scheme of srmngement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,

{vii) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ather parson or entity, including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding
that ihe intermediary shall

(%) There is no income surmendercd or disclosed ns income during the corrent or previous year in the tnx assessments inder the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not
been recorded in the books of neeounis.

(viii) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto corrency or virtual currency during the current of previous year,

{ix} The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use ossets) or Intangible asstes or both during the current or previous
finnneial year,

(%) There sre no charges or zatisinetion which ore yet 1o be registered with the registrar of companics beyond the statulory period.

Note: 44 Trade Plyables

gi-Mar-24 F1-Mar-23 1-Apr-22
Outstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises# . = =
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14,818.11 15.422.03 12,954 .88
Total trade payvables 14,818.11 15,422.03 12,054 BH

# Mo amoun (s due to Miemn, Small and Mediom Enterprises (identified on the basis of information made available by such enterprizes 1o the company).No interest in
lerms of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes {(Development) Act, 2006, has been either paid or acorued during the year.

Ageing schedule of trade payable is as below:

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Less than 1 1-2years 2-3years More than
vear 3 vears
Undisputed dues - MSME . - < a _
Undisputed dues - others 14.818.11 - - 14,818.11
Disputed dues - MSME - . = = &
Disputed dues - others - . . - -
Trade payables due 14.818.11 - - - 14,8181
Trade payables not due - = = % -
Unbilled 1rid:‘pajrab|!i - g i =
Total trade payables 1481811 . - - 14.81811




Particulars

Undisputed dues - MSME

As at March 31, 2021

Lezs than 1
wear

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 vears

Undisputed dues - others

15,422 03

Disputed dues,- MSME

1542203

Disputed dues - others

Trade payables due

Trade payables not due

15,422 03

1542203

Unbilled trade payables

Total trade payables

1542203 =

1542203

Particulars

Undisputed dues - MSME

As at April 1, 2022

Less than 1
vear

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 ve

Undisputed dues - others

12,954 88

Disputed dues - MSME

12.954 B8 =~

Disputed dues - others

Trade payables due

12,954 .88 -

12,954 58

Trade payables not due

Unbilled trade payables

Total trade payables

12,954 88 e

12,954 88




Note 145 Ratle

Particulars

Th
£ following are analytical ratios for the vear ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,

Current Katj Numerator Irenoml qi-j-202g  1-049-2083 'lr"urhnu-
Deht- F_'I-L__ Current nasets Current linbilities 2692 gy 140 HI%
=Gy Ratl Total Debis Shareholders Equity 0.01 ol -tAgk
%ﬂ!’.‘_‘ﬁeh‘kﬁ Coverngs Ratio Earnings Avnllahle for Debt Service  Debt Service 40.28 -5B6.49 106 87%
—xtur on Equity (ROE) Net Profits after laxes Average Shareholders Fund 1By%  -asgB% a7 B
lﬂ*ﬂﬂﬂj}]w Ratia Cost of Gools Sald Average lnventory - 545 g0 -apdak
Trade recervables tumover ratio Revenue Average Trade Recelvalile 074 408 B A%
 Trade payables tumover ratio Purchases of services and Goods Other expenses Avernge Trade Fayables 18.39 12407 -B518%
Net capital turnover ratia Revenue Waorking Capilal T 133 7h 1%
Net profit ratio Net Frofit Revenue 16.22% -azak _ 59.1%
Return on capital employed (ROCE) Earning before interest and Taxes Capltal Employed 16a%  -abg4%  I857x
Return on Investment(ROT)

Quoied Income generated from investments  Time welghted average investments % 0%
Unquoted Incoma generated from investments  Time welghied pverage Invesimonls 0% 0%
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Note :46 Related party disclosure {All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

a) Associnte Company Sripadam Investments Ltd,
Behubor Investments Lid.
Jardine Pest Monagement Lid
Diamond Products, Printing & Processing Ltd
Chnirana Tea Dealers Pt Lid

b} Key munagement persannel Kausik Gupta- Directar
Rakesh Macwan- Director
Deepankar Nondi- Director
Malini Vincent Soans- Director

s

b Company having common Director Jardine Henderson Limited

b} Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits
Fost-employment benefits (PES)*
Lang-term employee benefits (LTB)®

Sitting Fees 1 B50.00 500.00
¢} Key management personnel compensation (contd.)

Particulars 31-Mar-24 a1-Mar-23
Salary & Allowances - -

Professional Fees 3.375.00 =

d} Transactions with related party
The following transactions eccurred with related parties:

Car Hire Charges
Jardine Henderson Ld Common Director - 1,370.88
Juh Work

Sriharipadam Trading Ltd Associate Company b5.00 :




Kant & Co. Lid
Notes to Finaneial Statements

{All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)
Note : 47 First-time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS
These are thfcr.lm;nn)"s first financial stalements pmpaml inactordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set oul in Note 2, have been applicd in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 Marth_ﬂﬂ’-ﬂli the
comparative information presented in these financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS
balance sheet at 1 April 2022 (the Company’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheel, the Company Ius adjusted .lhc
amounts reparted previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rule$, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of bow the
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the
following tables and notes.

A. Exemptions and exceplions availed

Set below are the applicable Ind AS optional exemptions and mandatory exeeptions applicd in the transition from previous GAAF to Ind AS.

A.1 Ind AS optional exemptions
A1 Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to clect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
financial statements as at the date of transition 1o Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of
transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 fntangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind
AS 40 Investment Properties.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their
previous GAAP carrying values.

A.1.2 Investments in associates

In separate financial statements, a first-time adopter that subsequently measures an investment in a subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures at
cost, may measure such investment at cost (determined in accordance with Ind AS 27) or deemed cost (fair value or previous GAAP carrying
amount] in its separate opening Ind AS balance sheet, Selection of fair value or previous GAAP carrying amount for determining deemed cost can
be done for each subsidiary, associate and joint venture.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its investment in associates at their previous GAAP carrying value.
A.z Ind AS mandatory execptions
A.2.1 Estimates

An enlity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as al 1 April 2022 are consistent with the estimates as al the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP, The Company
made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

= Investment in eguily instruments carried at FVTPL;

« Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

2.2 Classification and measurement of finoneial assets

Ind AS 100 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the fact and circumstances that exits at the
date of transition to [nd AS,
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B. Reconciliation between IGAAP and Ind AS:
B.1 Reconciliation of total equity: i
| Particulars Notes 31 March 2023 01 April 2022
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per IGAAP 30,09,925 42,83,618.48
Adjustinents
Impact of Proposed dividend (net of tax) 1 : 5.559-30
Effect of fair valuation of investments 2 74,761.07 86,336.71
Effect of Post employement benefit obligation 3 1,582.04 665.14
Total adjustments 76,343.11 92,561,15
| Total equity as per Ind AS 30,86,268.05 43,76,179.63
B.z Reconciliation of total mmirehcmive income for the iunr ended 31 March zo23
Total comprehensive income as per previous GAAP (9,60,745.14)
Adjustments -
Effect of fair valuation of investments 2 (11,575.64)
Effect of Post employement benefit obligation 3 916.90
Remeasurement of Post employement benefit obligation 3 2,613.58
Tax effect on above adjustment {679.53)
Total adjustments (8,725)
Profit after tox as per Ind AS (9,69,469.83)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 4 (1,934.05)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS {9,71,403.88)

B.3 Impact of Ind AS adoption on cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
There are no material adjustments to the statement of cash flows as reported under Previous GAAP

C. Notes to first-time adoption

Note 1: Proposed dividend

Under the previous GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of directors after the balance sheet date but before the approval of the
financial statements were considered as adjusting events. Accordingly, provision for proposed dividend was recognised as a Tiability.
Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognised when the same is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. Accordingly,
the liability for proposed dividend included under provisions has been reversed with corresponding adjustment to retained earnings.

Note 2: Fair valuation of investments

Under the previous GAAP, investments in equity instruments/ MF were classified as long-term investments based on the intended
holding period and realisability. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the
value of such investments. Under Ind AS, these investments are required 1o be measured at fair value (except for Investments in
associates for which exemption with regard to deemed cost is adopted). Fair value changes with respect to investments in equity
instruments designated as at FVTPL have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March zo23.

Note 3: Impact of reclassification of Acturial gains and losses to OCI

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e, actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the
previous GAAP, the company used to pay the Gratuity premium to LIC based on their report and the same were forming part of the
profit or loss for the vear. The company has done acturial valuation for Post employement and based on the report company has
booked surpus in Gratuity Fund under Non Current Assets and the same has been adjusted with retained earning.







Ramesh Onkar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of M/s Kant & Co. Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of M/s Kant & Co.
Limited (“the Company”) and its Associates ( the Company and its Associates together referred to
as “the Group”) comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the
year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act,2013(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended,(“ Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024,
and their consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, the consolidated changes
in equity and their consolidatec cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Respansibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the Code of Lthics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ( ICAI} together with the ethical requirements. that are relevant to our audit of the
consahdated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have Tullilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these reguirements and the ICAl's Code of [ thics. Wo beiivve that the audit evidence obtained by
us and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matters section below is sullicient ang appropriate 1o provide a basis for our audit opinion

on the consolidated Ind AS firhicial statemernts

R —
Room No 20, Trinath Bidg. GC 19, Narayantala (West],%ﬁgﬁi%ﬁgf(ala 58, Mobile No.: 9830060929, 8420509129
E-mail ID ' ssharmavivek@gmail com, tameshonkarandco@gmail.com




Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statemenis does net cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information , compare with the financial statements of the Associates by the other auditors , to the extent it
relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other
information so far as it relates to the associates is traced from their financial statements audited by the other
auditors

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude thai there is a material misstaternent of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company including its Associates in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls




R

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of the Company , as aforesaid.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud orerror
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Group has internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the

operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.




* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such business activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the business activities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Group included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
0wt aSuatter should not be communicated in our




report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matters:

The Consolidated financial results include the results of the following entities :

' Sr.No. | Particulars ] Relation
1| Sriharipadam Trading Limited | Associate
2 Behubor Trading Limited ( Formerly Known | Associate
as Behubor Investments Limited) i |
|13 Jardine Pest Management Limited | Associate |
4 Diamond Products Printing & Processing | Associate
Limited ]
|5 | Chairana Tea Dealers Pvt Ltd | Associate ___._nf
a) We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of 3 Associates in which

b)

company's share of net profit is 443.91 ( Rs in Hundreds) for the year ended 31st March,
2024 as considered in the Consolidated ind AS Financial statements. The financial
statements of these associates have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors,

In respect of 2 associates as the company's share of loss in that associates exceeds the
carrying amount of investment, the loss has not been considered in the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial statements and investment is considered at Nil value.

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ("Annexure A”) a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143{3) of the Act, we report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears

from our examination of those books and reports of other auditors.
The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

(including Other Comprehensive Income) , the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
consolidated statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement




with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company
as on 31" March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its Associate Companies respectively
incorporated in India, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31* march 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘annexure B, which is based on the auditors’ reports of the company and associates
companies incorporated in India.

During the year the Group has not provided for nor paid Managerial Remuneration.
Hence with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, are not applicable.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Group has no pending litigations on its financial position in its consolidated
Ind AS financial statements .

i) The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts , required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its associate
Companies incorporated in India .

iv) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company or its associate companies incorporated in India to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or its
associate Companies incorporated in India (“Ultimate Beneficiary”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company or its associate
Companies incorporated in India from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or © ise, that the Company or its associate




v)

i)

vii)

Companies incorporated in India , whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiary”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures which are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations made by the
Management under sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

The Board of Directors of the Group has not proposed any dividend for the year
ended 31st March, 2024,

Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed
by the respective auditors of the associates companies which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, the Company and associates have used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit, we and
respective auditors of associates did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules,2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31,2024,

For Ramesh Onkar & Associates.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. : 010252C

\ Q0=

CA. Vivek S Sharma

Pariner

Membership No. : 060135
LDIN: 24060135BKCROL1705

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" May,2024



Annexure - A

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements of M/s Kant & Co. Limited for the year ended 31 March2024

( Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

(xxi) No gualification or adverse remarks given by their respective auditors in the Companies
{Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the Companies included in the consolidated financial
statements.

For Ramesh Onkar & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. : 010252C

00 E T e

CA. Vivek S Sharma
Partner

Membership No. : 060135
UDIN: 24060135BKCROL1705
Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" May,2024




Annexure — B

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements of M/s Kant & Co. Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated ind AS financial statements of the Company as of
and for the year ended 31" March,2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of M/s Kant & Co.Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) and its
associate Companies which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective board of directors of The Company and its associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial contrals system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS  financial statements; whether due

to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditars of the associate companies ,which are incorporated in India, is sufficient and appropriate to
{inancial controls system over financial
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reporting of the Company and its associate companies ,which are incorporated in India.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit
preparation of Consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, of
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated Ind As
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors , the Company and its associate
companies ,which are companies incorporated in India ,have in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ramesh Onkar & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. : 010252C

Vg, =

CA. Vivek S Sharma
Partner

Membership No. : 060135
UDIN: 24060135BKCROL1705
Place: Kolkata

Date: 30" May,2024




Kant & Co, Ltd

Consoidated Balunce Shect ns at 31 Muarch 2024
CIN: L17232WDB1953PLC020773

(Al amounts in INR hindreds , unless otherwise stated)

st April 2022

Motes || 31 March 2024 | 3t March 2023
Particulars
ASSETS 18
Non-current assets 4 4.214.84 7,000.35 0.!2!.-
Property, plant and cquipment - 71
Capital Work in Progress 4 2,35,017.7% 2,35,017:71 :2'3:"::‘::&
Investment propertics 5 1,96.413.38 1,35,969.47 :
Investments accounted for using the equity method 8,46
Financial assels 6 1,92,534,17 1,61,020.93 ‘mw
(1 Investments + 8,88,742.92 8,88,742.92 9 PpEYe
(ii) Loans 8 28,478.010 34945 11 591:73
(iii) Other financial assets 9 14,788.41 3,220.26 ) B4
Deferred tax asset (net) 0 14,478.78 4
Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 0 2,160.55 | 1,582.04 _____m
Other non-current assots 15.16,717.77 14,36,056.99 ___M—
Total non-current nsscts
Current asscts & 52,591.40 47,601.51 4,26,431.94
Inventories :
Financial assets ,184.00 -
i 3 brer i 2/07:808.42 59853809
ii i 14 4.59,581.01 5,07:0004 e
(ii) Trade receivables ey 43,853.09 55.683.69
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 15 s 1,00,933.27 “4,87246
{ii) Other Rank Balance 16 38,7407 ittt 14,31,101.48
(iv) Loans 17 6,72,960.06 7 72‘ 45 - ey 2
(v) Other financial ossels 18 73,701.01 ‘, 906.01 MM
BRT— - Fr nias | ayougraas |
Total current assets 17,82,306.33 | | 19:311,118.25 | — -
Total assels 32.99,044.10 __Mm __45:20786:39 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity share capital 20 55,593.00 55,593.00 PR
Other equity 21 aizszaooa)  gwbgavsal 44047830 -
Total cquity 32.31,323.03 37231452 | 44,60.375.11 |
Liabilitics -
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities -
(i)  Other Finoncial Liabilities - - -
Deferred tax liability (net) . 4 :
Other non-current liabilities . =
Provisions s =S =
Total non-current linbilities - - -
Current liabilities
Financial liobilities 3
(i) Borrowings 22 47,000,00 39,000.00 40,260,00
(i) Trade puyables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - = g
Total oulsmm.iing dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and 2 14,818.11
small entervrises 3
(iif) Other financial Habilities 24 13,61047
Other current liabilities 25 2,291.59
Provisions -
Current tax Liabilities (Net) 26 “
Total current linbilitics 67,720.17
Total equity and liabilitics 32,99,044.10
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 48
For Ramesh Onkar & Associales.
Chartered Accountants
Firmn registration No. olo252C 0(\“'3' r G
oo (5
KAUSIK GUPTA
Vivek 8 Sharma rET
Partner
Membership No. 060135
Director
Place: kolkata DIN: 08000780

Date: 30/05/2024




t & Co. Ltd
nsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Yenr ended 31 March 2024

CIN: Li7232WB1952PLC0o20777
o | e (All amounts in INR hundreds, unless
P otherwise stated)
PParticulars Notes 21 Morch 2024 31 March 2023 \
INCOME
Revenue from operations a7 3,58,400.97 22,55,143.34
Other income 28 1,67,911.42 2.
Total income 5,20,312.39 23,08,475.71
EXPENSES
Purchase of Traded Goods 29 2,78,016.36 17,60,372.09
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 30 (4,989.89) 3,78,830.43
Employee benefits expense a1 47,031.15 57,645.18
Finance cost 32 1,282.28 1,435.76
Depreciation and amortisation exepnses 33 1,680.87 2,170.58
Other expenses 24 1,52,928.34 9:51,517.46
l_ Total expenses 4,75,949.11 31,51,971.50
| Profit before Tax 50,363.28 (8,43,495-79)
Tax expense:
- Current tax 6 3,938.86 5
- Earlier year tax 36 - 1,16,823.04
- Deferred tax a6 (11,717.11 o]
Total tax expense (7:778.250} ____1,25,974.04 |
Profit for thé year 58,141.53 ___(9,69:469.83)
Share of profit of associate 443.91 1,850.99
Net Profit after taxes and share of profit of associate 58,585.44 | (9,67,618.84)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or lass
(2,613.58)

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 572.93
Income tax relating to these items (148.96) 67953 |
Other comprehensive income for the vear, nct of tax _423.97 2934.0
Total comprehensive income for the year 59,009.41 (9i69&_’39)
Earnings per equity share: 35 10.54 (174.05)
Basic and Diluted
(Nominal value per share Rs. 10)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 110 48
For Ramesh Onkar & Associates. N
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the board
Firm registration No. 010252C \
W&_._C\ KAUSIK GUPTA MALINI VINCENT SOANS
\
Vivek 8§ Sharma wankil M W-—- « \f < A o..e“_.g
Partner - e R
Membership No. 060135 Director Director
DIN: oBooo780 DIN: 09712652

Place: kolkata
Date: 30/05/2024 W




=
At & Co. Ltd
sonsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: LyrazzWBios2PLCO207™3
2 m-mmmm.uumm

a1 March 2024

Particulars
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before taxation
A@ummuﬁ:‘: 1.680.87 217058
Deprecation and amortisatn expenses 140000
Interest Paid - . 2,49,600.00
Provision for Dimunition i Value of Investment 183671 2,35.89563
Sundry Balance W/off P g1 <
Provision for Doubtfsl Debts- Trude Receivabe . 3.51,418.66
Dividend Income (20,496.00) (
Interest Income (1622.31 ¢
Profit on sale of Motor Car ‘M‘m’ -
Profit on sale of Investent
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
[OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES J30.51074
Adjustments for:
Noo-Qurrent/Current financial and other assets m) mm’“
Tnventonies J 2
Noa-Current /Qurrent financial and other liabilities/provisions 3:304.88
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Direct Taxes Paid (Nel of Refund) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B. [CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (95 : ;
Sale of Fixed Assets 2,822.04 169453
Dividend Income 2.764.45 6.274.07
Purchase of Non Current & Current Investment
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
C. |[CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : 2 l
Proceeds from short term borrowings (2,000.00) g
Reduction of Investment Reserve Fund - AR
Dividend Paid _ - (5.559-30
Interest paid 2 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,268.34) R
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (25,860.66) o TR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OPENING BALANCE 43,853.09 55,683.69
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE 17.992.43 __43.853.00

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 48

Notes-
(i) The above cashflow statement have been prepared using "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with banks in current account. Refer note 15.
(iii) In case of Company’s financing activities (including borrowings) there ate 1o hou-cash transactions or impact of changes in foreign exchange

rates.

(iv) Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged whether considered necessary to conform to current years presentation.

For Ramesh Onkar & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. ;u0252C
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Kant & Co, Ltd
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.0

2.1

General Information
Kant & Co. Limited ( the “Company”Jis a listed Public Limited Company incarporated in India The Company has its registered office at
15. Dr. Rajendra Prasad Sarani ( Clive Row) Kolkata- 700001, The Company is well-established tea company that has been providing

fvrtmium qd*:liw tea 10 its customers. In addition to tea Business the company is also engaged in trading of Jute Bags/ Non-Woven/ P P
oven Sacks,

‘The financial statements as at 31 March 2024 present the financial position of the Company,

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ("INE"} which is the currency of the primary economie
environment in which the Companv operates,

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30th
May, 2024.

Muterial accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below, Such
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance
The Company has adopted Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from o1 April
2022,

These figancial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company had been preparing its financial statements upto the year 31 March 2013, as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006 and other relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as Previous GAAP/ Indian GAAP).

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Indian
Mmuntmg Standards”, with 1 April 2022 as the transition date. In accordance with Ind As 101 "First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standard®, the company has presented a reconciliation from the presentation of financial statements under the (*Previous
GAAPT} to Ind AS of total equity as at 01 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 and of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As), under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial assets and Habilities which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) {to the extent notified) and guildelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
The Ind As are preseribed under section 133 of the Act resd with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and relevent amendmend miles issied thereafler.

Pricipal of Consolidation and equity accounting

(i) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where
the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (i) below), after initially being recognised at cost.

(ii) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the group's share of other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised grins on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the group's
interest in these entitics. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the group.

(iii) The difference between the cost of investment in the associstes and the Group's share of net assets at the time of acquisition of
share in the associates is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

(iv) The financial statements of the associates used in the consolidation ore drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Company
i.e. 315t March, 2024,

(v) In case of two associates viz, Diamond Product Printing & Processing Ltd and Jardine Pest Management Lid, as company’s share of
loss exceeds the carrying amount of investment, the loss over the value of the investment has not been considered in Consolidated
Finaneial Statement and investment is considered at Nil value.

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets ond liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underiving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant and

Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying pg
ovision for employee benefits and other provisions,

equipment, intangible assets, impairment of property, plyj
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and con)



Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Consolidated Finanecial Statements

2.4

2.5

6

2.7

2.8

9

Use of estimates and critical accounting Judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to aceounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, provision for employee benefits and other provisians,
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies,

Property, plant and equipment
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the

item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially
to scquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All
other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the statement of profit and less as incurred. When a
replacement occurs, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derccognised, Where an ftem of property, plant and equipment
comprises major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and Impalrment. Cost includes all direct costs and
expenditures incurred te bring the asset 1o its working condition and loeation for its intended use, Borrowing casts,if any, during the
period of construction is capitalised as part of cost of the qualifying assets,

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
aszet, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the earmying value of all its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at 1 April 2022 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of property, plant and

Intangible assets

Compuler saflivare

Intangible assets costs are included in the balanee sheet as intangible assets where they are clearly linked to long term economie
benefits for the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised on a WDV basis over their
estimated useful lives, All other costs on software are expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with definite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible
asscls

Depreciation and amortisation is eafeulated using written down value methed to allocate their cost, net of their residual values on the
basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are
reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
still in use.

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are;

Plant and Machinery 15
Furniture and Fixture 10
Drinking Water 10
Building G0
Vehicles B-10
Office Equipment 3-10
Software 5

Impairment of non-financial nssets
Assets gre tested for impairment whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmving amount may not be
recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the aszet’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely independent
of the cash flows from other assets or group of assets (cosh-generating units), Nop-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is
classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
opplicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure Is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associsted with the expenditure will fl p and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when iney an investment property |s replaced, the carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised,




/ Kant & Co. Ltd
/' Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 1o continue with the earrying value of all of its investment properties recognised as al
o1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that rarrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

Lenses Z

Leases are classified as finance lease where the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Company as lessee

(i) Operating lease — Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss an a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(ii) Finanee lease - Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of lease, at the lower of the fair value of the property or the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest.

Company as lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost
increases, The respective leased assets are included in thie balanee sheet based on their nature.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisitibn or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities ot fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a methed of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exoctly discounts future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(a) Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have maturities of less than three
maonths from the date of such deposits. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Other bank balances
Other bank balances include balances and depaosits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage or having maturities of more
than three months from the date of such deposits.

Financinl assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business mode! whose objective
is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Finaneial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
mode]l whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or ot fair value through other comprehensive income is carried ot fair value through
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected eredit losses is recognised for financial asscts measured ot amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Company recognises life time expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months
expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the
financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

‘The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to anather entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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{h) Financial liabilities and equity Instruments

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences o residual interest in the nssets of the Company after deducting all of its liahilities.
Exquity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial linbilitics

Trade and other puyables

Financial liabilities such as trade and other payables are initially measured ot fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant.

Borrowings - _
Interest-bearing bank Joans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.,

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire.

Employee benefits

{a) Short-term ohligations

Liahilities for wages, salaries and other benefits that are expeeted to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured b the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{h) Post employment abligations

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions to government administered provident fund scheme, employee state insurante scheme and pension
fund scheme for the employees. The Company has mo further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, if any. The defined benefit obligation is calenlated annually by actuaries
using the projected unit eredit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to

market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balanee of the defined benefit abligation and the fair value of
plan asséts, if any. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in sctuarial assumptions are recognised in the

period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediatelv in profit or less as past service cost.

Governmenl grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating 1o income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other operating income,

Government grants relating to the acquisition/ construetion of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on o straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented
within other income,

Provisions

Provistons are recognised in the halance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each
provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.
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Income taxes

The income Lax expense or eredit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable incame

tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses,

The *‘:""""' income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the lisbility method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements,

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax issses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and linbilities a!'lll when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation sutherity, Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Revenuce
The Company has applied IND AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether , how much and when
revenue is to be recognised. IND AS 115 replaces IND AS 18 Revenue and IND AS 11 Construction Contracts.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable net of discounts, taking into account contractually defined terms and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government,

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.
Mo revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs or the possible
retum of goods.

Sale of services
Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered on percentage of completion method,

Rental income
Revenue from renting is recognised on accrual basis in aceordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

Income recognition

a) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable,

b} Dividend income
Dividend ineome from investments is recognised when the shareholder's fights to receive payment have been established,

Inw:nh;ries
Inventories are valued ot lower of cost, computed on first in first out (FIFO) basis, and net realisable value. Cost of inventories include
all cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Research and development
Revenue expenditure on research and development is recognised as a charge in the Statement Profit and Loss. Capital expenditure on
assets acquired for research and development is added to Property, plant and equipment, if any,

Earnings per share
Eamnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or lass for the year attributable to equity share holders, by the weighted
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contingent Liabilities
Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent and

disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

Rounding of amounts
All amaounts disclosed in the finnacial statements and
Schedule 111, pnless stated otherwise,

off to the nearest Hundred as per the requinments of
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4 invesiment properties

Particulars

) Investrment Properties

Opening gross carrying amount / Deemed cost
Additions

Closing gross earrying amount
Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge

Closing accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

31 Maorch 2024

2,35017.71

2,35,017.71

(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless

otherwise stated)

31 March 2023

2,35/017.71

2,35.017.71

1 April 2022

2,35.m7.71

Z,35,017.71

2.§§,DIT.ZI

2,35,017.71

2,35,017.71

The Company has recognised 14,040.00 and 8,909.68 as operating income for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively with regards to the aforesaid

property.

The Company has recognised 3,103.65 and 3,969.41 as direetly identifiable expenses for the year ended 31 March zo24 and 31 March 2023 respectively with regards 1o the

Note: 5 Investments accounted for using the equity method

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March zo23 1 April 2022
Unguoted:
10400 (31 March 2023:110400, 1 April 2022: 110400) equity shares of Sriharipadam Trading
Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each 20,483.05 19,670.96 17.957.77
141500 (31 March 2023: 141500, 1 April 2022: 141500) equity shares of Behubor Investments
Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each 1L,11,537.91 1,10,821.29 1,10,660.71
135000 {31 March 2023: 135000, 1 April 2022: 135000) equity shares of Jardine Pest
Management Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each -
124850 (31 March 2023: 124850, 1 April 2022: 124850) equity shares of Diamond Product
Printing & Processing Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each - =
55000 (31 March 2o23: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Chairana Tea Dealers Pyt Lid
having face value of Rs, 10 each 9.892.42 5.477.28 .
1,36,413.38 1.35.969.47 1,28,618.48
Note: 6 Investments - non current
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
{A) Quoted & Fully Paid-up
(1}INVESTMENt IN SquITy SHAres 0 Lroup cCOMpanics desIgNated at amortsed cost
(fully paid up):
20035 (31 March 2023: 20035, 1 April 2022: 20045) equity shares of Jardine Henderson
Limited having face value of Rs. 10 each 0,109.04 0,108.04 9.109.04
60407 (31 March 2023: 60407, 1 April 2022 60407) equity shares of Dhelakhat Tea Co. Lid
having face value of Bs. 10 each 16,020.59 16,020.59 16,020.50
100687 (31 March 2023: 100687, 1 April 2022 100687) equity shares of Rydak Syndicate Co.
Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each 24,102.43 24,102.43 24,102.43
(ii) Investment in equity shares designated at FVTPL (fully paid up):
30000 (31 March 2023; 30000, 1 April 2022: 30000) equity shares of P.K Leasing & Finance
Lid having face value of Rs. 10 each 6,759.00 6,750.00 6,759.00
2389 (31 March 2023: 2376, 1 April 2022: 2376) equity shares of TCS Ltd having face value of
s, 1 each 92,706.82 76,172.18 B8 861,21
1191705 (31 March 2024: 1191705, 1 April 2022: 1191705) equity shares of Ontrack Systems Lid
having face value of Rs. 10 each 2,38,341.00 2,78,341.00 2,18.741,00
180 {31 March 2023: 200, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Wipro Ltd baving face value of Rs.
2 each 86304 TAOS0
200 (31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of HDFC Bank Ltd having face value
of Rs. 1 each ' 2,903.20 -
100 (31 March 2o24: Nil, 1 April 2o22: Nil) equity shares of Colgate Pomolative Ltd having foce
value of Rs. 1 each 2,681.83 -
235 (31 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Infosys Ltd having face value of Rs.
Seach 3.531.513 12
so0 (31 March 2023 Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of ITC Litd having face value of Rs. 1
each 2,148.30 =
10 {31 March 2024: Nil, 1 April 2o22: Nil) equity shares of Larsen & Turbg, value
of Rs, 2 each 376.72 5
so0 (91 March 2023: Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Tata Stee {
Rs. 1 each 775.85 -
10 (31 March 2023; Nil, 1 April 2022: Nil) equity shares of Ultratech
of Rs. 10 each 977,62 . -




Partlculars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 April 2022

10 (1 March 2029; Nil, 1 Aprl 2022: Nil) equity shares of Axis Bank Lid having face value of
Rs. veach 105.00 - -
100 (31 March 2oa3: Nil, 1 April 2oz Nil) equity shares of Adani Port and Special Economic
rone Lid hoving face value of Hs. 2 each 1.236.99 -
4,02,738.08 3.71,234-74 3.83.193.27
(B) Unquoted & Fully Paid-up
(i) Investment in equity shares of Group companies designated at nmortised cost
(Mully paid up):
14750 (21 March 2023: 14750, 1 April 2022: 14750) equity shares of Sangam Investments Lid
hawving face value of Rs. 10 each Bioo Bir.oo B11.00
25700 (31 March 2023: 25700, 1 April 2022: 25700) equity shares of Bararee Invesiments &
Lesing Co. Lid having face value of Rs. 10 each 2,596.25 2,506.25 2.596.25
(i} Investment in equity shares of designated at amortised cost (fully paid up):
67554 (31 March 2023: 67554, 1 April 2022: 67554) equity shares of Beliss India Lid having face
value of Ra, 10 each - . -
o000 (31 March 2023: 30000, 1| April 2022: 30000) equity shares of Om Kant Infrastructure
Development Pyt Ltd having face value of Rs. 10 each 1,000,600 4,000.00 3,000.00
15000 (31 March 2023: 15000, 1 April 2022: 15000) equity shares of Alpana Realtors Pvi Lid
(Formerly RE.] Realtors Pyt Lid) having face value of Rs, 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00 1L,500.00
7/907.25 7:907.25 TVRO7.25
(i) Investment in Preference shares designated at FVTPL (fully paid up):
2ooo000 (31 March 2023: 2000000, 1 April 2022; 20000006) Preference shares of Beliss India
Lid having face value of Rs, 10 each . 2
(iv) Investment in Bonds at amortised Cost (Tully paid up): at,487.94 31,487.94 31,487.94
— 4,42,134.17 4,10,629.93 4,22,588.46
Les: Provision for Dimupition in value of Investment 2,49,600.00 2.49,600.00 L
Total non current investments (net) 1,92,534.17 1,61,029.93 4,22.588.46
(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 1,57,638.98 1,26,134.74 1,84,193.27
(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 34,895.19 34,895.19 49.995.19

* Provision for Dimunition in Value of Investment was made a

Pvt Ltd and Alpana Realtors Pyt Ltd

gainst P.K Leasing & Finance Ltd, Ontrack Systems Ltd, Om Kant infrastructure Develapment
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Note: 7 Loans - non current

Particulars

Unsecured, Considered Goods
Other Loans & Advances
Other Advances

{All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

51 March 2024

8,88,742.92

41 March 2023

8,88.742.92

1 April 2022

9,12,042.93

TOTAL

§,88,742.92

8,88 742.02

9,12,042.93

Note: 8 Other financial assets - non eurrent

Particulars

31 March 2024

91 March 2023

1 April 2022

Fixed deposits with more than 12 months maturity® 24,700.00 - 2,664.48
Security Deposits ) 3,778.01 3,494.31 3.744.31
TOTAL 28,.478.01 3,494.31 6,408.79

Note: g Deferred tax asset (net)

31 March zoz4

31 March 2023

1 April zozz

Deferred Tax Assets
on Property Plant & Equipment 2,798.18 3.220.26 11,691.73
on Alowanee for Doubtiul Debts- Trade Receivable 11,5G0.23 - =
TOTAL 14,788.41 3,220.26 11,691.73

Note: 10 Non-Current Tax Asscts (Net)

Particulars
Advance Tax (Net of Provision)

31 March 2024
14,378.78

31 March 2023

1 April zoz2
3.058.84

TOTAL

14,378.78

3,058.84

Note: 11 Other non-current asscts

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Surplus in Gratuity Fund (Refer Note No. 41) 2,169.55 1,582.04 665.14
TOTAL =2.160.55 1,582.04 665.14

Note: 12 Inventories

31 March 2024 it o March 2023

Stock in trade

{1} Shares
Quoted 78.23 184.00 248.80
Unyuoted i 34,387.77 34.387.77 34:387.77
(if) Traded Goods 18,125.40 13,020.74 16,705.37
(i) Mutual Fund = 2,75.000.00
TOTAL 52,501.40 47,601.51 4.26,431.04

Note: 13 Investments

31 March 2024 31 March zo23 |
; _ ) xar &
Investment in Mutual Fund designated ot FVTPL(fully paid up): w\p 4,65,320.97 4,14.184.00 -
< P
TOTAL o] Mokata']|o 4,65.3130.07 4,14,184.00
75@ ]
\d’, g‘"




Note: 14 Trade receivahles

SRR
Particulars 31March2024  31March2023  1April 2022
Unseeured, considerced gond 4,96,565.72 5,07,808.42 5,08,538.93
Unsecured, considered doubtful 9,131.54 = -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debis [(46,116.25) = -
TOTAL 4,59,581.01 5,07,808.42 5.98,538.03

Refer note 39 for risk relating to trade receivables

| Mote: 15 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March zo23 1 April 2022
Cash in hand 18110 38.58 79715
Balanees with banks:
= in current account 17,811.33 43.814.51 54,886.54
TOTAL 17,992.43 43.853.09 55,683.60

antc: 16 Other Bank Balance

Particulars 31 March 2024 = 31 March zoz3 t April 2022
Unpaid Dividend Account 94.00 94.00 94.00
Fixed Deposit with original maturity of more than three months but less

than 12 months 38.646.76 1,00,830.27 4,778.46
TOTAL 38,740.76 1,00,033.27 4,872.46

Note: 17 Loans - current

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1 April 2022

Unsecured, Considered Goods

Other Loans & Advances

Loan to Staff ’ 93910 1,774.10 5.345.00

Other Advance 7.48,1153.20 8,55,213.20 9,48.,413.20

Inter Corporate Deposit 2,10,000.00 2,10,000.00 9,23,200.00

Interest Receivable 15,326.42 7,306.84 1,54,153.28
10,24,378.72 10,74,204.14 14,31,111.48

Less: Provigion for Doubtful Delts on other sdvanees 9,51,418.66 3,51,418.66 -

TOTAL 6,72,060.06 7,22,875.48 14,731,111.48

MNote: 18 Other linoncial assets - current

Particulars

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

1 April zo22

Security Deposit - 2,000.00
Advance to Others 73,701.01 72,196.01 2,71,944.41
TOTAL 2 73,701.01 72,196.01 2,73:.944.41

Nate: 19 Other current nsscls

Particulars

Balance with Govt Authorities
Advance Against Expenscs

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

1,408.69 1,016.47
= 650.00

1 April 2022

191.19

TOTAL

1,408.69 1,666.47

989.37




B o diswe [FRgauaq pav e8] yiog sjuasaidas Surpodarrs asoqe a Aurdumn I Jo spaodang Iyl 2ad sy

%50 € ook iz %LEE %88 oob'6h TRy TpuTIng
WIS ooh'is w000 . %00°0 5 e et
w606 ofSas whof oES"0s wH0h BESas i1 Purpe g, woprdurgug)
wEg 5 COO0'RE %EgT 000°gg %EgSt 000'gq 1STLL|, DEIRUES FUEG TD
%9 LE o05'0l'E ®IHLE oS ez %IELE o05ot's P11 Fumser] 5 ooy miepy
dn-pred Ajpng yawa of sy Jo saneys Gmbg
Fuiploy jo % SAIEYE JO 0N Augploy jo % FIIWYE JO Op] durploy 3o s SIIELYE JO 0N
TTOT [y 1 ETOE yaey 1E FEoE yaany 18

Audurod 3ij) Uy 532wy % & ury) 350w FUIp[o1 sIap|oyaIuis J0 S[TEIad (A1)

%6070 o0s Koo' 00% RE0D [T EIqa dWs JFigaly HAtyS
L] oL xE1'0 DL *Ero ofl EIRY FnpLy feigEgy edmgs
%Er0 0es %Ern D=L %xiro ogL EIR)y TpLIY Seigany ey
%iz'o oosT %LED 005 HLTO LTk Pr1 {d) FIurpjop] wEeysamsg
%iC0 ofo'z ®ifo oS0z %LE0 oo’z Efgapy Ty SEIga gy s
%il0 oot HeLD ook %640 ool'k By elpegs feigagy eadigs
%360 osEs spb0 [ Fla] %géo ogke EVREY INEIYS SRy By
%ERE oobTE #d8g oob6h L] oo ok EIa){ EPUEING
%Ios 0ob'LE %000 - %000 * By JUEy mEnoe]
K606 0ES'0s %606 o anl 606 ofS'of pir1 Huppes . wepedoegug
%tg < BO0'EE %ERcr 000§ %Eq S 000'gy IETULL, UEJEUES PRI T D)

%og LD 005'0l'E %oRLE o050l %97’ LE oo5ar's PYT 38 Sursesr] 5 ooy andepy

dn-prod dgpng (aes o1 sy Jo saeys Gnbg

Jurpjoy jo % SISEYS [0 p] Sufploy jos SAJWLF JO “0p] Juippoy jo a; SAIEYE JO oy

zzoz [udy Loz yoaupyg ik Froz ypaep i _

sajowoad jo Faipleyaeys (1)

“REIp|aaITs au) A ppag saregs Aimba jo saqumy aq) o)

uonscdosd U1 34 [[w USRI AGUISTR 3R] FIUNOME [Euasagad [U jo uonngquystp sq) s Soedurody ag) o s1eEe SUITRLA 3419031 61 PaITuD 3 [RM Faarys Samba o wrappoy sy *fuedwos s jo wonepmby o jeas agq) u)

Hunpag [esatag [Enutry uf seaporaiegs ) fq pasoadde pur sijaang jo preg a4 Aq pesodosd 5 b b
Awedmocy ) 4g pAIT[EIp PUIPLAIP J0) PIAINES AT SIBpjogRIEYS 3t]L, -areys sad ajoa aub of papinua 1 sasrys Ajmba jo sappog garg A sod - o5y Joanpes sed Juwey saueys Oinba jo sy 1o sty Joedwon an]

saanys Aynba o) papepe syt suag, (1)

Lo S oLH5E s TR DEOEE g L0555 oEGTSTE JEAL ] JO PUS U7 1T SUIPpUEISING
: . a - " £ Jead 3y Juunp panas)
BG5S DEHTES E65'SS oC6'85"S Jeak 3y jo Suyuurdsg ag) gy
sagvys Lmby
Junonry SURYS JO 0N Junoury BRJTL[S JO "ON FUNOWY Sy Jio ‘oN
ezoz [udy 1 Leor yampy 1f

FooT pampg £

(e ATEys Alnba up JUa A iy (£)

ETOE(dyv e Ero yaaugy 18 FTOT Yaauiyg 18

(Pa1TLs SFIII0 $53{UT * SPaIpUny FA] UL FIUHOWE [y}

[R5 o0 EAEEL o EGEEY
00 EBSES 00 EBEES oo L65 5T yjse2 m yuammied 10) panes) yaEa o1 Ty Jo suegs Smbg 0E6S5S
[(epdea asmys Gmbs dn-pped Spng pue paguosqns ‘panssg
00000 00T OO000 00T o0 0000t a2 g1 Ay )0 sawgs Annbg oooooot
¥ rdes aaeys Snba pazLogny

eypdea aeys Lunbeg oz a0

FIUIUING [RRUBUL] P EPIoSU0D 0] S0
PYLI00 % quey



Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Consolidated Finaneial Statements (AJl amounis in TNR hundreds |, unless otherwice staled)

Mote: 21 Other equity

41 March 2023 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Heserves and surplus

) Investment Reserve Fund 4,69.431.50 4,69,431.50 782,379.90
4 General Beserve 27.54.501.20 27,54,501.29 27,54,591.29
b} Retained earnings {48,201.86) {1,07,300.27) 8,67,Bi0.92
I'otal reserves and surplus 31,75 710,97 31,16, 721.52 44,04, 782.11

31 March 202y 31 March 2023

Reserves and surplfus

a) Investment Reserve Fund

Opening balanee 4,60431.50 7.82.379.90

Less Written off during the vear = 3.02,948.40

Closang halance 4,69,431.50 4,69,431.50

b} General Reserve

Opening balance 27.54,591.29 7,.54,591.29

Add: Amount Transferred from ratained eaming - =

Closing balance 27,54,501.20 27,54,591.29 |

b) Retained earnings

Crpening balance (1,07,300.27) B,67.810.92

Add: Net profit) (loss) for the year 58,585.44 (o,67,608.84)

Less: Dividend Paid - (5.559.30),

Less: Transfer to Genereal Reserve .

Items of other comprehensive inceme recognised directly in retained earnings 3
- Remeasuremnents of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax 423.97 (1.934.05)

IndAS Eniry

Closing balance {48,291.86) (1,07.301.27)

Total reserves and surplus 31,75,710.03 31,16,721.52

Nature and purpose of other reserves

{i) General reserve

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created through an onnual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable
regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act, 2013, the requirement 1o mandatory transfer a specified percentage of the net profil Lo general reserve has been
withdrawn though the Company may transfer such percentage of its profits for the financial year os it may consider appropriate. Declaration of dividend out of such reserve shall
ool be made except in accordance with rules preseribed in this behall under the At

(ii) Retained earnings
Retained Eamings are the profits that the Company has eamned till date, less any transfer 1o general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid (o shareholders.




Kant & Co. Ltd

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Al amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

Note: 22 Borrowings - current

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 1 April zoza
Unecured
Loan from Related Party 12,000.00 14,000.00 15,260.00
Others 25.000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
TOTAL 37,000.00 39,000.00 40,260.00
Note: 23 Trade payables

31 March 2023 31 March zo23 1 April 2022
Trade Fayables {Refer note 44) 1481811 15.422.03 12,954.88
TOTAL 13 818,11 15.422.03 12.051.88

Note: 24 Other financial labilities - current

31 March 2023 31 March 2023

t April 2022

MNote: 250ther current liabilities

Payable to Employees 1,530.25 2.749.95 1,620.69
Secunity Deposit £, 05060 6,050.00 2,000.00
Unpaid Dividend 94.00 44.00 94.00
Other Pavable 5.016.22 2,152.94 250.00
TOTAL 13.610.47 11,046.29 3.964.60

a1 March 2023 31 March 20273

1 April 2022

Statutory dues payable 1,001.36 94397 F.231.86
Advance from Customer 1,200.23 3.00 =
TOTAL 2.201.5% 046,07 3.231.86

Note: 26Current tax Liabilities {(Net)

Current tax labwhitses { Net of Advanee Tax)

31 March 2027

31 March 2023
- 1,08,44543

TOTAL

- 1,08.445.43




Kant & Co, Ltd
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise

stated)

Note: 27 Revenue from operations

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income from sale of Black Tea 2,30,533.37 4.86.461.77
Income from sale of Jute Bags 1,17,923.25 97,861.30
Income from sale of My Brew 526.77 :
Income from sale of Mutual Fund . 16.70,496.53
Income from sale of Share 9,:417.58 e
Total 3.58,400.97 22,55,143-34

Note: 28 Other income

Particulars 31 March zo24 31 March 2023
Dividend 3,764.45 6,274.07
Tea Waste Sale - 1,092.00
Interest on Bank Fixed Deposits 2,761.43 1,679.80
Interest on Bond 3,034.57 3,045.00
Interest on Corporate Deposit 14,700.00 14,700.00
Interest on IT Refund 213.73

Interest others 81,830.66 26,710.26
Miscellaneous Receipts 38.76 84.75
Profit on sale of Investments measured at FVTPL 3,416.99 -
Car Hire Charges 997.56 1,370.88
Rent 14,076.00 8,009.68
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1,622.31 1,041.57
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 41,454.96 (11,575.64)
Total 1,67,911.42 53,332.37

Note: 29 Purchase of Traded Goods

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Purchase of Mutual Funds & 12,74,980.00
Purchase of Black Tea 1,63,211.23 3,96,103.19
Purchase of Jute Bags 1,04,555.13 Hg,288.90
Purchase of My Brew 10,250.00 =

2.78,016.306 17,60,372.09

Note: 3o Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

31 March zoz24

Opening stock

31 March 2023

Shares 34.57L.77 34.636.57
Traded Goods _ 13,029.74 16,795.37
Mutual Fund = 3,75,000.00
47,601.51 4,26,431.94
Closing stock
Shares 34,466.00 34,571.77
Traded Goods 18,125.40 13,029.74
Mutual Fund = -
47.601.51

& f—=——)0o || (4,089.89)

3,78,830.43

oy :
i

.,

ckar &> 52,501.40
Ol
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™ e :
)
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Note: 31 Employee benefits expense

21 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, wages, bonus ete. 42,082.50 43.'?!;3-22
Contribution to provident,pension & other funds 3,187.22 4,185.95
Gratuity (Note No. 41) 885.28 1,004.01
Staff welfare expenses 876.15 3,742.00
Total 47,031.15 57,645.18

Note: 32 Fingncee cost

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Particulars

Bank Charges 13.94 35.76
Interest on Unsecured Loan 1,268.34 1,400.00
Total 1,282.28 1,435.76
Note: 33 Depreciation and amortisation exepnses

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipments (Note 3) 1,680.87 2,170.58
Total 1,680.87 2,170.58
Note: 34 Other expenses

Particulars 31 March zo24 31 March 2023
Auditor's remuneration [Refer note 43] 470.00 330.00

Branch Expenses - 314.67

Computer Expenses 108.00 173.00
Director's Fee 1,050.00 500.00
Electricity Charges 709.30 2,478.35
Exhibition Expenses 3,250.49
Freight Charges 3,541.24 3,002.01
Legal & Professional Charges 27,812.59 20,710.89
Brokerage Expenses 1,018.15 3,481.54
Miscellaneous Expenses 3.,846.86 6,257.83
Motor Car Expenses 108.18 512.99
Municipal Tax 2,039.28 2,039.28
Printing and Packing charges 10,337.57
Rates & Taxes . 2,043.01 5,114.73
Rent 3,504.44 62.16
Repair & Maintenance :

Building 1,014.17 1,930.13
Others 5.,183.06 4,2473.59

Telephone Charges 126.11 165.14
Travelling & Conveyence 6,470.25 4,520.37
Custody Fees 165.20 1,070.00
Registrar Fees 60.18 51.00
Job Work 31,117.30 55,584.89
Donation 100.00 2,000.00
Sundry Balance W/off 1,836.71 2,35,895.63
Provision for Doubtful Debts- Trade Receivable 46,116.25 -
Provision for Doubtful Advances - 3,51,418.66
Provision for Diminution in value of Investment = 2,49,600.00
Total e 1,52,928.34 9,51,517.46

2909
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Kant & Co. Ltd

Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in INR hundreds , unless ptherwise

stated)
Note : 35 Earning Per Share'
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Profit attributable to equity holders of the company used in caleulating basic and diluted 58,585.44 (g,67,618.84)
carmings per share
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in caleulating basic and 5:55,930 555,930
diluted earnings per share (in numbers)
() Nominal value of Equity Share (in Rs.) 10 10
(d) Basic and diluted carnings per share 10.54 (174.05)




Kant & Co. Lid
Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 36: Income tax exXpense

(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless

otherwise stated)

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows amounts that are recognised in profit or loss or other
vomprehenive income and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items.

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Current tax on profits for the yvear

(a) Income tax expense
Crirrent tax
Current tax on profits for the year

Profit and loss 3,938.86 g
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 1,16,823.04
Total current tax expense 3,938.86 1,16,823.04
Deferred tax L
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities {11,717.11) 9,151.00
Excess provision of earlier tax - B
Total deferred tax expense,/(henchity (11,717.11) 9,151.00
Income tax expense (7,778.25) 1,25,074.04
Particulars 31 March 2024 = 31 March zoz23

Profit and loss 3,938.86 -
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 1.16,823.04
Total current tax expense (A) 3.978.86 1,16,823.04
Deferred tax expense recognised in profit or lass
Deferred taxes (11,717.11) 9,151.00
Total deferred tax expense recognised in profit or loss (B) (11,717.11) 9,151.00
Deferved tax expense recognised in Other comprehensive income
Deferred taxes (148.96) 676.53
Total deferred tax expense recognised in Other comprehensive income (C) (138.96) 679.53
Total deferred tax for the year (B+C) (11,866.07) 9,830.53
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) (7.778.25) 1,25,074.04
Total income tiX expense recognised In Other
comprehensive income (C) (148.96) 679.53
Total income lax expense (A+B+C) (7,927.21) 1,26,653.57

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Profit before tax 50,363.28 (8,43.495.79)
Tax at the rate of 26.00% (2022-23 — 26.00%) 13.094.45 -
Adjustments for carry forward loss (9,273.23) .
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 1,16,823.04
Difference in tax rate for sale of investments {9.51) -
Impact due to changes in tax rates (B11.67) 9.151.00
Nel gain on fair valuation of investments on which no deferred tax created (10,778.25) -
Tolal income tax expense/(credit) (7.778.25) 1,25,974.04
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Eani & Co. Lid

Nates tn Consalidated Financal Statements
- {All ammounis in INR hendrmls (nlesm ot herw ise siabed)

Naote 38: Falr value measurements
Financinl instruments by oan i

1 April 2022

31 March 2084 31 March 2023
Vo Amortised cost . Fvocl Amaortised cost

Pargicwls
vy FViDCT Amortised cost

Finonoial aseets
IRyestments in equity inst ruments LOB 406,92 . 53,630.1 76,902,648 5243931 33096031 57:439-34
Iovestments in debenteres g T . . 3148754 - - JAB7.94
| nvestrments in muoiual fusda 3 = . - . *
4.65.100.97 . 41418400
(Other Loans & Advances . . R, Ty i s B,88,742.92 * A3 O4253
Security Deposits . - AR 340431 ’ - 3Ma
Fined Deposii (Margin Mosey ) with original maturiy
excvending 12 moniha a = 2470000 - : - - 2664 48
‘I:r:n.le reeenalile - - 4505801 . & o7 RGHA42 e - 085800
Cash balances . 17,9924 . 4185300 7 ¢ ss.683.69
Onbher bank balsnoes - Al g0 g . 1, QLY 2T . A Braab
Lasan o Sualf . - aInA0 - - 110 . S.345.00
Inter Corparate Depasit * . . 2,10,000.00 - . 2,80,000.00 - - JAq200.00
Imterest Recrnable & - 1533643 = - ya06h Ry . - 154, 15338
Otbet Advances - A 50454 - ST - 94841320
Advance 1o Others 3 = 7170101 = < 2 b 27104441
TolalTinancal assris & T, 7780 - 23 64533 45 4.91,086 68 - 2424 BF0.75 .33, 96021 = J3.71.239.54
Financinl Fabilities
Ferefratngs - 70000 . . A0, - - W0, 2H0.00
Trade payalde ‘ - - 14 Bif e E 1542209 E . 12,754-88
Payalile 1o Envployees - - 153038 . s 274935 - - [Rompen ]
Security Deposits - - 5.050.00 . - 6,050.00 L Ry
Uipasd Dividend z E: 84.00 : 2 " 9400 3400
Oty Paaakiles - = 50333 - . 2153.04 B = 25000
L alal Hnansial Talabiies - - [EWELEL] - - w3 a0R.g2 . - 317957




"a1ep Sunsodal goea 1e paptodas syuncwe augy way
Tsuagp aq few s99ep Supuoedar agy o) 1uanbegns muamnEm [EIDUENT Jo IN[EA T8} ‘Yans sy SHED asnssdsal jo se suogaesunn aes i pred Jo pasijear aiey ppoa Auedwiod aqy yey siunowe s jo ageENpul USSR J0U AJE e pajuasard
SEUINS anfes 178y ) “Siawngsul [eoueoy e Afmumsgns J0) ‘aojalsq ] anbiugpa) vonewnss fue uy SOOHEIMI] JUAIIHU] IR DY) TAMINOH SIUSWITLS [EuEay S8 jo anfes J1e) a1 funemnss m wawadpnl 1saq 51 $2s51 10MmaTeuryy

U ppan Auediaynno
dmpnpu andur ajqeussgoun jo UDIETRT 31 0] #np Agaresarg anpes 1wy agy oy sanjes sie) £ [asa) se pagissep are oy - e FulwaLiog Juaun Susn PRUNCISIE Swol) 49t Uo paseq pale[noes aam SIOIWISU} [PRURH 0] SIN[RA J1E] I

TEIN[RA LY IR ST AUITS 3y 34 0 PAUSPISUOD T SINIIGEL pUT Sjassy eRuruy Fopuena jo sjunowe Fuiue gL

SIS4[TUE MO() gSE parunoostp Busn pauluLalep 51 Suawnnsm [enuran AL JO ST IR 3] «
PPN UIUNSTL [ERURRY snfes o pasn sanbriyaal nonEn[Es Sypads
SM[EA JIE) AUMULINP o pasn anbruyps) uonenfey (11)

FHTRL JE UMb N ITR) JO ajemnse ¥ A siue=udal 1500 pUt SusmAITS T anjes Jre) ajqussod jo afoes IPLnE O TR anji 21wy o sjowns ajeudodde oe se PAsapisu u3aq seg susmnnsu mbs pajonbon UMl jo 51507 (q

*Zzoz (udy 1 pue Ezoz 1€ yatep ‘tos Y€ URITEY Papua sieak 3yl 10) T [asar] pue t [3A9] U32.002q SRSTILE 01 Uaq asey a2 (e
0N

SF pan Gredia)unoa Furpnaug sindu F{QEAIISGOUN JO UOISNIIU] 3G} O] 3P YUY arifes Jrey AL Ul £ (2] S pagissr 51 Awedmon ay jo SIIGEL] PUR S1SSE [ERURLY UGu ENR

"TIEP IS ITU ]| [RAR U0 PITEL M) 1T 100 JUSUISt Swrs A LT SUOTIESURY T JuaLmd ajqearasqo may saoud g papoeddns
i@ are ey suohdwmsse uo paseq [Rpow uonEnes & Jursn ‘wed 01 10 Jjoym vl pauuuaap ae SNEL Jtz4 °E [Baa] Ul PAPNIL ST IRIW IS S B)Ep jaaEw AEadaEgo uo preg o0 5 sindu) juesgiudis oy jo asow 1o Juo 31 :E eaay

T [PAS] UE PIpTVALY ] JUIMIISUL 31 ‘| BAKISGO TR JUIMTISUL UE Jnjes 41e) o} parmbas sindun juesyiuFis
e J1 ssvrummss agoads- it uo ajqmsod s apay se A pue wiep 1SR JqEAIISYD o 25T 3Y) ISTWHCE oy ssnbiuyaa) UGNER[EL ST PAUTLLAP 5 13400 AALIE UE U] papen jou aue IEY) SUIWAISTL [ERURLY JO D[R 318 ]tz [aAd]
waud paonb Fun panseam spuawnugso [FuEug sapnjau) Syaseiaty 1 Rae] i @asg

PP Fonunoade 3y Japun paqosid sjasa 04N 43 0101 SUIWTLIS L [ERURLY 51 pagisTER sey Auedwiog ayyanjes 11 Sutiasaag o) pasnseduy ay) 1o Alige[as syl anoqe uonepuy uE apuosd O MUswaies [eroeay
U1 PISOSIP AT SINJEA JIE) GG 10} PUP 1500 PISTLIOWE ¥ PANSTIU (q) pue In[es irey je PRInSTEII pu pastuFiadad (v) ade jey) SIUBLILLSUL [ERUFLY 1)) Jo Sanjes 119 3y UMD Uf IpEW sALUNS pur siuwaTpRl I sure|dxa nofaas sy,
: Aypaesary anfea arey (1)
{(panunuod) susuInsEI W anjes Jye g g€ oy
(PRITIS FsLsatio ssaqun * spaspuny Y| o1 saunote jpy)
SIUMUDES [eaue L PONEPIOSUO]) 0} 53105
PYI ‘00 3 jumy



Kant & Ce. Lad
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Al armounts in INK huindreds | anless othersise stated)
Note 39: Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities are expased 1o a variety of financial risks: credit risk, Tiguidity risk and market risk (Le, foreign currency risk, interest role sk and price rick)

Thix note explaing the sources of risk which the entity is exposed 1o and haw the eitity minages the risk:

Risk Expasure arising from Measuremenl Managemcil

Credit Fisk Cash and cash equivalents, trade AgIng analysis Diversification of customer base,
receivables and financial assets Credit ratings diversification of hank deposits,
measured ol amortised cost Custewner crecit Timits

Lopurnifadiy risk Financial liabihties that are settled by [Cash flow forecasis Avatlabiliy of comumatted ceedit lines and
delivening cash or another financial borrowing facilities
assel,

Market risk - Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis Portfolio deversification

o) security prives

(A} Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the passibility that the counter party may not be able 1o settle their obligations s agreed. To manage this, the Company perindically assesses
financial reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking into account the financinl condition, eurrent econnmic trends, and analyxis of historical bl debits and
ageing of financial assets. Individunl risk limits are set and periodically reviewed an the basis of such in formation

It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

1) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

i} Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

it} Financial or economic conditions that are expected 1o cause a significant change to the counterporty’s ability to meet its obligations,

w) Significant increase in eredit risk on other financial instroments of the same counterparty,

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonabile expectations of recovery,

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables from individial customers based on histarieal trend, industry practices and the business environment
in which the enlity operates. Loss rates are based on nctual eredit loss experience and past trends,

i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through established policy and procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Trade receivables
are non-interest bearing and are generally earrying 45 1o 9o days credit terms, The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various
levels within erganisation to ensure proper attention and focus for realisation

The ageing of trade receivables as of balance sheet date is given below. The age analysis have been considered from the due date:

Less than six More than six Total

months muonths
Trade receivable as on 31 March 2024 (Gross) 48 B60. 59 4,560,836 72 505 10726
Less: Provision for bmpairment loss - - {46,116.25)
Trade receivable as on 31 March 2024 (Net) 48, B60.54 4.50,830.72 4.59,581,01
Trade receivable a5 on 31 March 2027 [Gross) 74,715,791 4,39.493.11 5.07,808.42
Less: Provision for impairment loss = = -
Trade receivable as on 31 March 20213 (Net) 74,315, 31 3.13.493.11 5.07.B08.42
Trade recenvable as on 1 April 2022 (Gross) 23,505.45 575,003 48 5,08,508.95
Less: Provision for impairment loss - - -
Trade receivable as on 1 April 2022 {Nct) 29,505.45 5.75.053.48 5.08,518.03

The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date. Refer note 14 for details on the impairment of trade receivablis, The maximum exposure vo credit nsk
at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets diselosed in Note 40. The Company does not hold collateral as security,

Undisputed — considered good 48 B60.54 §0,275.05 1,15,523.53 24,707.07 2,26,270.21 5,05.697.26
Undisputed = Credit Inmpaired i B i z : 5
Disputed - considered good - & = =
Disputed - considered doubtful = - - - .
Trade reccivables due 48,860.54 90,275.95 1,15.523.53 24,767.03 2,20,270,21 5.005,007.20
Less: Allowance for Credit Loss 46,116,235
Total trade receivables 48,800.54 90,275.95 115,523,573 24,767.0% 2.26,270,21 4.50,581,010
D
b i n
| i ala

Unilisputed - considered good 74,315.51 4 93,1981 49,:435.68 24271449 5.07,B0K.62
Undlisputed — Credil Impaired - | A var-p] - - R 3
Disputed - eonsidered good = LAy ~ 7 W - =

S \(1

1]

%ﬁ %ra
*



Disputed - considered doubtiul = = : z g -
Trade receivables due T4315.51 48,540.81 0300813 40,439.08 2.42.314.4% 5.07,808.62
Less: Allowanee for Credit Loss -

Total trade receivables 74.315.51 | 48.540.81 93.198.13 49,439.64 2,42,314.49 fa0 S0 bz

As at April 1, 2022

"6 months A

year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
yeiurs

Total

Undispited - considered good 23,505.45 17,1221 92,747.20 0,018,260 1,69,230.01 3.32,623.22
Undispumted — Credit Impaired - - - - - =
Divsputed - considered gond . : - 2,65,015.71 2,65,915.71
Disputed - considered doubtiul . . x - - -
Trade reccivables due 23,505.45 17,322.21 92,747.20 40,018.26 4.35.145.72 5.94,538.03
Less: Allowance for Credit Loss -

Total trude receivahles 23,505.45 17,022, 21 DL, 74720 A0.01H.20 4.35,145.72 5.08.518.03

ii) Financial instruments and deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions i managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limils assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the
Comipanies' Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to spproval of the Companies* Finance Committee. The limits are set to
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments,

The earrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk was 22,64,923.45 as at 31 March 2024 and
24,24,0030.75 as at 31 March 2023, being the total of the carrying amount of trade receivables and mher financial assets,




Kant & Co. Ltd

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements "
{All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

Note: 40 Finangial Risk management {continued)

(B) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial nssel.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents an the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally
performed in accordance with practice and limils set by the Company.

(i) Maturities of financial linbilities P
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

« all financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
diseounting is not significant.
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 1 year

More than 1 year

31 March 2024

Barrowings 37,000.00

Trade payable 14,818.11 - L4, B18.11
Payable to Employees 1.530.25 - 1,530.25
Security Deposits 6,050.00 " 6,050.00
Unpaid Dividend 94.00 . 94.00
Other Payables 5,000,232 - 5936
Total financial liabilities 65.428.58 - 65.428.58

Contractual maturities of financial linbilities Less than 1 year More than & yecar

31 March 2023

49,000,00
Trade pavable 15,422.03 15.422.03
Payable to Employees 2,749.45 - 2,749.25
Secunty Deposits 6,050.00 - 6.050.00
Unpaid Dividend ©4.00 - 94.00
Other Pavables 2,152.99 - 2,152.94
Total financial liabilities 65.468.32 - 65.468.32

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Less than 1 year
1 April zoz2

40, 260.00 40, 260.00

Borrowings .
Trade payable 12,054.88 12.954.88
Pavable to Employees 1.620.69 - 1,620.60
Secunty Deposits 2,0000.00 - 2,000.00
Unpaid Dividend 04,00 = .00
Other Pavables IR0 - 250,00
Total finaneial liabilities 57.179.57 . 57.179.57
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Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nole : 41 E.mpll;.w.-e benefit obligations
(i) Defined contribution plan

(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees fowards Provident
fund which is defined contribution plan. The Company has no abligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution te Provident fund for the year

aggregates to 1.087.22 (2022-23: 4,185.95).

(ii) Post-employment obligations
Graluity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in eontinuous service for a
period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the emplovees last drawn basic (including
dearness allowance) salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days (reckoning 26 days for a menth) salary multiplied for the number of years of
serviee. The gratuity plan is a unfunded plan and the Company makes contributions te recognised funds in India.

Baszed on actuarial valuation, a provision is recognised in full for the projected obligation over and above the funds held in scheme.

(iit) Balance sheet recognition

a) Gratuily

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

: Present value Fair value of plan Net amount
Particulars of obligation assets Liabilty/ (Assels)
1 April zozz 97,839.16 38,504.30 (665.14)
Current service eost 1,004.00 - 1,004.01
Past service enst = - -
Interest expense/(income) < " -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1,004.01 = 1,004.01
Remeasurenients
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest - 942.77 (942.77)

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (2,286.07) - (2,286.07)

Actuarial {gain)/loss from unexpected experience 5.842.42 - 5842 42
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 3,556.35 942.77 2,613.58
Employer contnbutions/ premium pard - 4,534.49 (4.534-49)
Benefit payments (28 .558.27) (28.558.27) -
31-Mar-23 13,841.25 15.423.29 (1,582.04)
Pirticulars Prcsc?l\ffltlc Fair value of plan Netamount

of obligation assets Liabilty/ (Assets)

1 April 2023 13,841.25 15423.29 (1.582.04)
Current service cost 1,033.62 1,093.62
Inierest expense/{income) 1,090.41 1,158.75 (148.34)
Total amount recopnised in profit or loss 2,044.0% 1,158.75 BRz.28
Remecasurementss
Retum on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest - (124.74) 124.74

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 85.50 - 85.30

Actuarial {gain)/loss from uncxpected experience (782.07) - (782.97)
Tolal amount recognised in other comprehensive income {697.67) (124.74) (572.93)
Employer contnbutions, premium paid g0 86 (Bgg.8a)
Benefit payments = = -
Z1-Mar-24 . 15,187.61 17,357.16 {2,160.55)




{iv) Significant estimates: octuariol assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Disability Rate

Withdrawal mate
Retirement Age
Average Future Service

Farticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discount rate 7.20% 7.40%

Expected returm on plan asset 7.20% 7.30%

Salary growth rute 5.00% 5.00%
IALM (2012-14) table] TALM (2012-14) table

Mortality rate kit s

5% of Mortality Rate
1% to 8%

60 Years

13.6

5% of Mortality Rate
1% 1o B%

6o Years

14.6

() Sensitivity analysis

“The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligntion to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Tcount rate (-] + 1) {780.41) 947.03 (773,78} 938.68
Tolaty growih rate (-] + 17%) 958.09 (Boa.76) 950,54 (797.67)
Withdrawal rate (-] + 17%) 164.99 (125.93) 160.38 {110 86

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumplion
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When cal
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obli

while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
culating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
gation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the

reporting period) has been applied while calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balanee sheet.

The methods and types of nssumptions used in preparing the sensitvity analysis did not change com pared lo the prior period.

i} The major categorics af plan nssets

The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India. The Company does not have any liberty to manage the funds provided to

insurance companics. Thus the composition of each major category of plan assets has not been disclosed,

(vii) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investment risk:

The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India. The Company does not have any liberty to manage the funds provided 1o

insurance companies.

Interest risk:

A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

Life expectancy:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mertality of plan participants bath during and
at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability,

Salary growth risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan Hability is caleulated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An inerease in the salary of the

plan participanis will increase the plan liability.

{viii) Defined bengfit liability and employer contributions
The Best Estimate Contribution for the Company during the next year would be Bgb.52/-

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 2.72 years (31 March, 2022 - 3.67 years). The ex pected maturity analysis of

undizcounted gratuity benefits is as follows:

a1 March, 2024
Defined benefit obligation (gratuity)

Less than 1
year

679.43

1-3 ycars

3 - 5 years More than 5 years

= 1,693,573

Total

LA L
Less than
year

- 1,633.5°
More than 5 years

31 March, 2023
Defined benefit oblizgation (gratuity) ~ 1.517.84
Total - 1,517.84




[CIEEY) [CTTO ] (SiEol) (FSLEF) (O FEEF) (REDLF) FIDSFE 2N
BET 9N BET'YL 1zi'or SICYET] ITALM- 00T [E}D],
GLg'Er LOR'Er FLER Lro'lE 61L8E rog'at FATIHGET] THALIND [Fi0 L
EE6 [l ohHGE"E 019 o019 01 FISIT JEALIN-00T [H0]
Sqr'c Saz‘F Fog'E 1gze's qbE'h Lzb'h FITTE JURALITG [E10L |
rE-2dy-10 LT-JUy-18 Fo-Jdupy-1t Ez-Jdy-10 Eo-Jug-ik FT-Juig-1E
P iuswmaieunyy 1534 JuTprep PI duissaaoa ¥ Sunuisg 10 ] PUOIEL TRNE I paTIRTIE S
TS in's L GO iy T TS LE el LEBRIGE Sk e R
ozriig'an oELIgat ardigion - - B S IPGET] (UALIRS- 0T (W0
frzsive pleil b biEzi'be 65 Sg1'gh £t Ezo'gh Togiz'ir FRPGET] 1AL (e
10°0Lg' Bz 10°0Le'0'E SHgFEgos B Ln6TE 1B od5gk £z1br'aS FIATE JURLIT- 000 (B0
Eorgirsen Bir6rgre orgbSie B ERS'EE b5 ees'th Sorsst SISV AL [Flo]
ZT-2dy-10 Ez-Juig-1E re-JEig-1E TE-JUy-10 Ez-dupg-1E PE-IW [y TE
P a1 SoqNeT pri Juipei) wepEdueyug T SR PRI

TR0 JIEAI[A 3] jO FIGIUL| 6 [FRUTTY Y 01 pajusasd Ronoare ) Ka[R) pRsREp 0T euom S IEDOST I S0) BOLETLIOFU] [WISUTUL pasLTmemy Jpiosd Mofq sjqr s

ST SOSIRAATY I Sy X000 X00EZ ROOTE Poniau b aEGEY EIpul I I Si3[Eaq) B3 L TUEAELy
SANLATIE JuSumsasm pue Furped] | wFo gk o gF w0 gF Poiaw Aty oY | Fipu] T VsuaTenn)y 15 1 SUTIET
s josspRax; pos Sinpaay)__NEFET N-¥ OF xi¥oz ORI Ay STEosY G PirT Fameasas  Jurusg ppasg pRSUF]
T T e s S e Sl s L Sipuy P sl B
SPMLANIE |THEEAE pue Jurped] a1 wioF = Fir&¥ poi 1310 Ainky 0Ty, GT) P JopEiL mepedugUS
» " e uopraedioauy
appe Edpuag er-ady-10 fe-repgE Fz-dujg-E u.,._u_”..___..:”.u:u_-__ dyysuopeEy §0 £nunes g g
152 U] dpySIIUMD JO % [ssaupsng jo 2wy

Pig miqEu Jupos jo vorsodasd ag) s awes i 5 153 dijoawss jo uopsodosd aq) pue ‘wzuEmg jo avid prdpoud seq) o
2 HONEAATE S0 BofiRiodioan jo Anumed 2y, Auvdwos aq1 Aq Afsup PRy AT qamps ‘segs Gmba o A]3es Sunssuos prdes gy asey wojaq PRI SN0 AL FE0F AT 1E 18 8 Aueduos 31 Jo FEmeRse 3 1 Mopg 110 195

AEDOSTE U] jFaI3jU]
AN 30 U] 5153I0U] TF 1310
{PITIS L3I0 FIRTEN FPAPUNT Y| 0 SITNOWE 1Y)

FIUAWRE S [ERUEUL] PR 0Sue) of S0
P10 3 uwy




By

1401 miajuael Ua L EURIEYy

(REED1) (1 Eoz's) aimoou] axpyuaasdwos pro)
2000t AnFEgadmnd B0
[gzEot) (1 Eozl) arad ag 0] 1gndg
ot fge'z Ere&for METALTY
EE-JUy-10 EE-Jupg-ih rE-aujy-1k

PTT 1ol 539]930] §3 PUEITEL YN AUV R PISLITILNS
{00 STF) (oo 6ll) (oo nok) (oo ZFE) (oo —gi) (oo'F'z) AENEI A psuaaadued (me ]
SN TR0 SO0
(o0aST) (oo 6EL) (o0 bal) [oa'LFE) (o0 LS 1Y [oo'LkiE) STad 3} B0 1peLg
0aGI anoaTy

co~adv-10 EE-Jujy-1L Fe-Jupy-1t rr-ady-10 ET~JEN-1E Fe-duiy-1k ¥0|

PIr] umadvun gy 153, Juipaer PI Bupssasod, F SUnulLg NPl puoirEg pum Jyodd Jo JUIUIEIN PISLITMILNS
[ 5 TN EI'LEL T Eiial O0Lig'E 5 Tlas aRitg's SUIOIUL ANIFUIIIATRD [E1aL
WO AT YAAIDOY I
L TR erEet oy Tk ooSig'e Skt g8155'E T4 307 20 JIpOLd
e LT [l oy 150606 o068 LY Ty ] re S5z anEaNTY

EE-ddy-10 LE-Juiy-ik fre-Jupg-1k eE-idy-10 LE-ditjg-15 Fe-Jupy-1k =

: |

5 e

PR SRAUGERIL J0qTRR Pl Buppes )y wepedumyps s yyoad Jo JUIUINES PISLITWIWMS
S%0| PUm Load Jo IR parUELmng
TR Ebo"21 SJISSE |30
EEIEET] (HALTL- B0 (B ]
EnT ga'Rt SAIIET] VAL [0
FITP |UALING- BOW [#30 ]
albige FiE99 EYIEER 0L [E0 ]

g~aildy-1o EE-aupy-1k FE-duy-1k

12T VUG PIFLIREIUNG




BLLY'S Iy I68E yunowm Julilse)
Furplog w0 o) suaamipy
pesTiiosay ou
FIOMIEIAE FuTpaae saeso| jo saueys ¥, dnoay
. BELFS Ty Ieg'e T o e 8, Unoag
K000 ROOTE ROU'ZE w0 aregy 5 Auwday
- TR [ TR FPIST JIU BUPSHE
cE-Jdy-1n Ex-aujy-1k FE-JE -1t
P b BIIE() B3] ELEITEYTY
- Punowe Jutiarey
% . Furppog sson sop nosamipy
Swigest EFTEPL oTESS YL SSRLEE IVEEL'S 16 8196 poTiosas o
TR EREA ) TP SIER0| J0 sy § dnoun)
[SPIgEsT (B YIY'PT) (0T E95 ¥T) {95 288 [Z¥ 66176 (16 8T976) Ty m anrys s dnoasy
whogt % bogh s ol L dgs xitoz wikor % 1 arvgs § Grndwody
(oo gio'zE) (oo qgootok) (ES Pk ok) (oo FEELF) (oo tFeFF) [CEE T LR 3] E135YE 12U SUls0pD)
TE2dy-10 TrdEl-Ik FE-dEjg-1E EE-ddy-10 ET-aujy-ik Fe-auin-ih
Pr1 juamadeuny 353 JUpaer P Sulss3204d § SURULL] PTpod, puotEid
1L 055011 ECIZEOLT 16 EESIT'T LLESELT 56 0LYEL 50 EBG'DE junowE fuLirey
(ST LoeTh) (SzLoz'zE) (Soloe'zE) - - - ARy [nde) pesmudoaann;y
o6 Loy kT grazoti GUSrLEE LL L8h gholy b Sofgélos ¥ b1 e § dnoan)
SHG GF wE bF gy b g FrEF stk bk % 1] Areqs § duwdumo)
E=P 5] TS LLRLHE EFEOFE il ' 5014 i T4 Thikb'ch 512558 jau Jupso)))
TE-JUy-10 Fr-auiy-ik FEauig-1E zz-ady-10 Ez-aviy-1E FE-T -1k
P MjUsunsIsu) Jognag pr1 B fumyug

sjunoue Sullires o) uoRelaueay



Kant & Ca. L1d

Notes to Consnlidaled Financial Statements

Details of equity accounted invesiments

tAll amnunts in INE bundreds, unless nthenise stated)

&) Name of the Company = = F Accumulated Carrying amount of
Original Cost of | Goodwill /{Capit profit/(loss) as at | investments as at 31
Investment al Reserve) =y Marchaozs | March 2024
Sriharipadam Trading Lid 11,246.00 14435 41 16.701.38) | 2098305
Behubor lnvestments Lid 31.175.00 132.207.25) 1.12.570.16 11153791
Diamond Product Printing & Procesing Ltd . a .
Jardine Pest Managemen: Lid . B
Chawrana Tea Dealers Pvt Lid 5,500.00 [1,607.58) 38514l
[Totsl 49,923.00 117,768.24) 1.04,755.23 1,35.41338
Name of the Company Abcamulited Carrying amount of
Original Cost of | Goodwill /{Capit : .
1 " t al Reserve) profit/(loss) as at 31 | investments as at 31
March 2023 March 2029
Sriharipadam Trading Lid 13.248.00 443841 (8.015.45) 1967095
Echuhor Imestments Lid 3117500 32 207.35) 11185343 1.10.821.23
Drumond Product Printing & Processing Ltd - -
| Jardine Pest Management Lid 5 : :
Chairana Tea Dealers Pyt Lid 5,500.00 (22.72) 5.477.28
Total 49,523.00 (17,768 B4) 10381531 1.35.965.47
v N of the Company i ? Accumulated Carrying amount of
Original Cost of | Goodwill/{Capit
o al B ) profit/(loss) as at 1| imvestmenlsasats
April 2022 TOTT
|Sribaripadam Trading Lid 13.248 00 14,438 41 (9,728.64) 17,950.77
| Behubor [mvestments Lid 31175.00 [32,207.25) 1,11.692.56 1.10,660.71
Diamond Prodect Printing & Processing Lid . - a s
| Jardine Pest Management Lid = . -
Chairana Tea Dealers Pyt Lid .
Towl 44,423.00 {17,768 84) 1.01.964 32 1,278,618 42




Kant & Co. Lid

Notex to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Al amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise stated)

Note: 43 Contingent Linbilitics

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Particulars
Contingent abilities not provided for :

Note: 44 Other notes

1) Auditors’ Remuneration

Particolars g1-Mar-24 Ji-Mar-23

(a) Audil Fees 250.00 25000

(b} Tax Andit Fees 100,00 >

(e} Limiled Review 120660 Ao a0
. JT0.00 PR O

) The Company has measured Investment in Equity shares of Group Companies al amortised Cost ol the date of transition to Ind AS.

¢} Additional Regulatory information required by Schedule 111
(i) No proceedings initiated or pending ogainst the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaclions Act, 1988 and

rules made thereunder,
(11} The Company has not been sanclioned any working capital limils from Banks or Financial fnstitutions on the basis of security of current assets.

{iit) The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any Bank or Financial institution or other lender,

{iv) The Company has no transactions with the companies Struck off under the Companies Act, 1956,

(vi) The Company has not entered into any scheme of armangemant which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,

(i) The company has nol advanced or loaned or invested funds 1o any other person or eality, including forelgn entities {intermediaries) with the understanding

that the intermediary shall:

{¥ii} There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Acl, 1961, that has not
been recorded in the books of accounts,
{vili}) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virual currency during the current or previous year.

(ix} The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) or Intangible asstes or both during the current or previous
financial year.
(%) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the registrar of companies beyond the staliory period.

Note: 44 Trade Payables

Particulars Ji-Mar-24 Ji-Mar-z3
Outstanding does of micro enterprises and small enterprisess . .
Cutstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises 14, 818,11 15,422.0%
Tolal irade payables 14,0181 15,422.04

# Noamount is due to Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises (identified on the basis of information mode available by such enterprises to the company) No interest in
termie of the Miceso, Small and Medium Esterprises (Development) Act, 2006, has been efther paid or accrued during the year,

Ageing schedule of trade payable is as below:

As at March 31, 2024

Undisputed dues - MSME . = -
Undisputed dues - others 14,818.11 - - 1481811
Cesputed dues - MSME . =

Desputed dues - athers = = = - -
Trade payables due 148181 - - - 14818 11
Trade payables not due - - - .
Unbilled trade payables - - ¥ -
Total trade payables 14.818.11 - . . 1481811




Particulars

Undisputed dues - MSME

As at March 31, 2023
Less than 1
vear

1-2 years

More than
3 vears

Undisputed dues - others

Disputed dues - MSME

15,422 03 =

1542203

Disputed dues - others

Trade payables due

1542203 -

Trade payables not due

1542203

Unbilled trade payables

Total trade payables

1542203

1542203

Undsputed dues - MSME

As at April 1, 2022

Undisputed dues - others

12,954.88 -

Disputed dues - M5ME

1295488

Disputed dues - others

Trade payables due

12,954.88

12,954 88

Trade payables not due

Unbilled trade payables

Total trade payables

12,954 88

12,954 8B




Note :46 Ratls

Particulars
Current Ratio

Numerator

The following arg analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2087

Denominat

Fi-09-2024

q1-09-2023 Varlance

Current assets Current Hahilities 26.)2 1093 MO0 :1:
Debit- Equity Ratlo Total Debis Sharcholders Equity om opl  -688
Debi-Serviee Covernge Ratin® Earnings Available for Debt Service  Delat Service 4018 -586 ‘“f -106.87%
Eeturn on Equity (ROE)** Mel Profits afler laxes Average Shareholders Fund 1.82% -2540% 2722%
Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average lnventory 545 9.01  -a96a%
| Trade receivables turnover ratio*** Revenue Avernge Trade Receivabla 0.74 4.04 #1.82%
| Trade payables turnover ratio Purchases of serviees and Goods Other expenses Avernge Trade Payables 18.39 12407 -B5.18%
Net eapital turmover ratio Revenue Warking Capital 01 131 =76.01%
Net profit ratio Nel Profit Revenue 16.22% -42.09%  592%
Return on capital employed (ROCE)# Eamning before nterestand Taxes  Capital Employed 1.58% -zbza%  a7.Ho%
Returm on Investment| RO1)
Quoted Income generated from investments  Time weighted avernge invesiments 0% 0% E
":JTwulcd Income generated from invesiments  Time weighted average invesiments 0% a%




Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in INR hundreds, unless otherwise
stated)
B. Reconcilintion between IGAAP and Ind AS:
B.1 Reconciliation of total equi

Particulars Notes 41 March 2023 o1 April 2022
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per IGAAP 30,85,840.75 43,59,396.54
Adjustments

Impact of Proposed dividend (net of tax) 1 B 5:559.30
Effect of fair valuation of investments 2 74, 761.07 86,336.71
Effiect of Post employement benefit obligation 3 1,582.04 665.14
Ind AS adjustment of Associates 10,130.66 B.417.42
Tax Effect on above adjustment - -
Total adjustments 86,473.77 1,00,978.57
Total equity as per Ind AS 31,72,314.52 44,60,375.11

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2023
Notes 31 March 2023

B.2 Reconciliation of total
Particulars

Tatal comprehensive income as per previous GAAP (9,60,607.40)
Adjustments .
Effect of fair valuation of investments 2 (11,575.64)
Effect of Post employement benefit obligation 3 916.90
Remeasurement of Post employement benefit obligation 3 2,612.58
Ind AS adjustment of Associates 1,713.25
Tax effect on above adjustment (679.53)
Total adjustments (7,011.44)
Profit after tax as per Ind AS (9,67,618.84)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - {1.934.05)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS (9,69,552.89)

B.3 Impact of Ind AS adoption on cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
There are no material adjustments to the statement of cash flows as reported under Previous GAAP

C. Notes to first-time adoption

Note 1: Proposed dividend

Under the previous GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of directors after the balance sheet date but before the approval of the
financial statements were considered as adjusting events. Accordingly, provision for proposed dividend was recognised as a liability.
Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognised when the same is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. Accordingly,
the liability for proposed dividend included under provisions has been reversed with corresponding adjustment to retained earnings.

Note 2: Fair valuation of investments

Under the previous GAAP, investments in equity instruments/ MF were classified as long-term investments based on the intended
holding period and realisability. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the
value of such investments. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value (except for Investments in
associates for which exemption with regard to deemed cost is adopted). Fair value changes with respect to investments in equity
instruments designated as at FVTPL have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Note 3: Impact of reclassification of Acturial gains and losses to OCI

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the
previous GAAP, the company used to pay the Gratuity premium to LIC based on their report and the same were forming part of the
profit or loss for the year. The company has done acturial valuation for Post employement and based on the report company has
booked surpus in Gratuity Fund under Non Current Assets and the same has been adjusted with retained earning.




Kant & Co. Ltd
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note :47 Related party disclosure

a) Associate Company

b) Key management personnel

b) Company having common Director

Particulars
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits (PEB)*
Long-term employee benefits (LTE)*
Sitting Fees

b) Key management personnel compensation

(All amounts in INR hundreds , unless otherwise
stated)

Sripadam Investments Ltd.

Behubor Investments Lid.

Jardine Pest Management Ltd

Diamond Products, Printing & Processing Lid
Chairana Tea Dealers Pvt Ltd

Kausik Gupta- Director
Rakesh Macwan- Director
Deepankar Nandi- Director
Malini Vincent Soans- Director

Jardine Henderson Limited

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

1,050.00

¢} Key management personnel compensation (contd.)
Particulars 31-Mar-24 g1-Mar-23

Salary & Allowances

Professional Fees

1.375.00

d) Transactions with related party

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Car Hire Charges
Jardine Henderson Lid Common Director

Job Work

Sriharipadam Trading Lid Associate Company




Kant & Co. Ltd

Notes to Consolidated Financinl $Statements

(ANl amounts in INR hundreids , unless otherwise stated)
Note : 48 First-time aduption of Ind AS

Transition 1o thd AS

These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accondance with Ind AS.

The accounting palicies set out in Note 2, have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, the
comparative information presented {n these financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 202; and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS
balance sheet at 1 April 2022 (the Company's date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the
amounts reported previously in financlol statements prepared in accendanes with the aceounting standards notified under Companies {Accounting
Stamadards) Rules, 2006 (a3 amended) and other relevant provisions of the Aet (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the

transition from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the
following tables and notes,

A Exemptions ond exceptions avalled

Set below are the applicable Tnd AS aptional exemn ptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

At Ind AS optional exemplions

Al Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopler to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAF and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of

transition, This exemption can also be used for intangible nssets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind
AS go Investment Properties,

Accordingly, the Company bas elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their
previous GAAP carrying values,

Aoz Investments in associates

In separate financial statements, a first-time adopter that subsequently measures an investment in o subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures at
cost, may measure such investment at cost (determined in accordance with Ind AS 27) or deemed cost (fair value or previous GAAP carrying
amount) in its separate opening Ind AS balance sheet. Selection of fair value or previous GAAP corrying amount for determining deemed cost can
be done for each subsidiary, associate and joint venture,

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its investment in associates at thelr previous GAAP carrying value.
Az Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Az Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs al the date of transition lo Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accardance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in aceounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were in error,

Ind AS estimales as at 1 April 2022 ane consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company
made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previons GAAP:

= Investment in equity instruments carried at FVTPL,;

= Impiirment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

Auz.z Classification and measurcment of financiol nssets

Tnd AS 100 requires an entity 1o assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the faet and cireumstances that exits at the
date of transition 1 Ind AS,







